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Extract from ‘Britannia’ by William Camden,
1610

7. Neare unto Cambridge on the South-East side there appeare aloft certaine high
hilles, the Students call them Gogmagog-Hilles, Henry of Huntingdon tearmed them
amoenissima montana de Balsham , that is, The most pleasant mountaines
of Balsham , by reason of a little Village standing beneath them, wherein, as he
writeth, the Danes left no kinde of most savage cruelty unattempted. On the top of
these hilles I saw a fort intrenched, and the same very large, strengthned with a
threefold rampire: an hold surely in those daies inexpugnable, as some skilfull men in
feats of war be of opinion, were it not that water is so farre off. Gervase of Tilbury
seemeth to call it Vandelburie. Beneath Cambridge (saith he) there was a place
named Vandelbiria for that the Vandals, wasting the parts of Britaine with
cruell slaughter of Christians, there encamped themselves: where upon
the very top of the hill they pitched their tents, there is a plaine enclosed
round with a trench and rampire, which hath entrance into it but in one
place, as it were at a gate. Touching the Martiall spectre or sprite that walked
heere, which he addeth to the rest, because it is but a meere toyish and fantasticall
devise of the doting vulgar sort, I willing over-passe it. For it is not my purpose to tell
pleasant tales and tickle eares. In the Vale under these hilles is Salston to be seene,
which from the Burges of Burgh-Green, by Walter De-la-Pole and Ingalthorp, came
unto Sir John Nevil Marquesse Mont-acute, and by his daughter and one of his heires
to the Hudlestones, who have lived heere in worship and reputation. More Eastward,
first we meet with Hildersham, belonging somtimes to the Bustlers and now by
marriage to the Parises. Further, hard by the woods, is Horsheath situate, the
possession whereof is knowen by a long descent to have pertained unto the ancient
families of the Argentons and Alingtons, of whom elsewhere I have written, and is
now the habitation of the Alingtons. Adjoyning heereunto is Castle Camps, the
ancient seat also of the Veres Earles of Oxford, which Hugh Vere held (as the old
booke of Inquisition records) that he might been the Kings Chamberlaine ;
whereas notwithstanding most true it is that Henry the First King of England granted
unto Aubrie le Vere that office in these words: The principall Chamberlaineship
of all England in fee and inheritance, with all the dignities, liberties, and
honors thereto belonging, are freely and honorably, as Robert Mallet held
the same, &. The Kings notwithstanding ordeined sometimes one, and sometimes
another at their pleasure to execute this office. $ The Earles of Oxford also, that i may
note it incidentally, by the heire of Richard Sandford held the Manours of Fingrey and
Waulfelmeston by serjeantry of Chamberlainship to the Queenes at the Coronation of
the Kings. Not farre from hence are seene heere and there those great and long ditches
which certainly the East Angles did cast to restraine the Mercians, who with sudden
inrodes were wont most outragiously to make havocke of all before them. The first of
these beginneth at Hinkeston, runneth Eastward by Hildersham towards
Horsheath, about five miles in length. The second neere unto this, called Brentditch,
goeth from Melborne by Fulmer.
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pofieflion, befides 19 lﬁ&es held under them. The abbot and convent of Ramfey
Irad 52 hides; the abbey of Croyland 26 hides; the abbies of Thorney, Chatteris
and St. Wendrille in Normandy, {maller eRtates.

The largeft lay proprietors were, Alan Earl of Britany, Picot de Cambridge,
Hardwinus 'de Scalariis or D’Echallers, and Euftace Earl of Boulogne. The °
Earl of Britany had feventy-eight hides in his own poflefion, and ninety hides
were held urder him, all of which had belonged to Editha, the queen of Edward
the Confeflof. Pieot de Cambridge had fixty-four hides in poffeflion, and eighty-
feven others were held under him ; Hardwin D’Echallers, thirty-fix hides, and the fee -
of thirty-eight ; and the Earl of Boulogne, twenty-five hides, and the fee of ﬁve
others.

In a fecond clafs of land-holders may be reckoned Judith, Countefs of Northum.
berland ; Robert Gernon, anceftor of the Cavendith family ; Eudo, fteward of the’
king’s houfehold Aubrey de Vere, anceltor of the Earls of Oxford; Roger de Mont-
gomery, Earl of Arondel; Wido de Rainbuedcourt; William de Warren, (after-
wards Earl of Surrey); Geoﬁ'r!y de Mandeville, anceftor of the Earls of Effex; and
Walter Giffard, Earl of Buckingham ; who had in their own pofleffion, from ten to
twenty hides each, befides what was held of them by other perfons. John Fitz Wale-
fan had nifte hides and a half; Hugh de Porth, anceftor of the St. Johns, and David
* de Argentomago, had fix hides and a half each : there were fourteen fmaller pro.
ptietors, none of whom held fo much as five hides.

Very few of thefe eftates centinued for any length of time in the defcendants
of the families who pofleffed them at the time of the Norman futvey. A fimall
part of the vaft propefty of the Earl of Britany, confifting of the manors of Fulbourn
and Swavefey, continued in his defcendants of the male line, the Zouches, as late
as the year 1400, and afterwards paffed by female heirs .to the families of Bo.
tetort, Burnell, Boteler, and Carey. Moft of the eftates of Picot de Cambridge,
pafled by female heirs to the families of Peverell and Pecche, the laft of which
became extiné in the male line about the end of the fourteenth century. Whaddon,
the feat of the barony of Scales or D'Echallers, continued in the male defcendantn of
Hardwinus de Scalariis for feveral generations: Whaddon in the reign of Queen
Elizabeth, was in the family of Moor, defcended from D*Echallers in the femate Ine.
"The defcendants of Aubrey de Vere retained forne of the manors of their anceftor for
feveral generations : Great-Abingdon and Caftle-Camps were not alienated until the
fixteenth-century.

Among the earlieft poffeffors of lands i Cambridgethite, of whom we lm'e any
notice from records fubfequent to the Norman Sutvey, wete the Baffingbourns and
the Argentines. The Tiptofis, who were before poflefled of feveral manorsin the -
ocounty,fucceeded to theeftates of theBaffingbourns, whofe chief feat wasat the village
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of that name; but whether by purchafe or inheritance does not appear. They had
feats at Burwell and Great-Everfden ; their eftates pafled by female heirs to the Ingol-
defthorps and Nevilles, and eventually became divided among the co-heireffes of John
Neville, heir to the Alingtons *; fome of them were alienated at an earlier period,
but Horfehéath the feat of the family, and the manors of Argentines in-Melbourn,
and Alingtons in Bottitham, were not fold till afier the death of William
Lord Alington, the laft heir male, which happened in 1692. -

* Next after thofe “already “mentioned, in point of date, we find" the families of
Colville, Buftler, Freville, Trumpington, St. George, Delahay, Engayne, Burg-
hertt, ‘Heflarton, Hobledod, Huntingfield, Hafelden, and Avenell; of thefe the
only family now extant, is that of Colville, no longer refident in the county ; New-
ton their ancient feat, was fold by R. Colville °® efq. in 1792. The heirefs of the’
Buftlers married into the family of Paris, the principal branch of which, after pof-
fefling their eftates for feveral generations, ended in an heir female, who brought
them to the family of Andrewes, afterwards baronets. The family of St. George,
whofe name appears as early as the reign of Edward I., became epriched at a later
period by marriage with the heirefles of Engayne, Delahay, and Avenell: the lalt
heir male of the St. Georges of Cambridgefhire, was Sir Henry St. George, Gar-
ter principal king of arms. Hatley St. George, the feat of the family, being the
only remaining part of their eftates, which in former times had been very extenfive,

. 'was dlienated feveral years before his death, which did not happen till the year

1718 The memory of moft of the above mentioned families, is ftill kept up by
manors called after their names; fome of them occur in feveral parifhes. Towards

_the middle of the fourteenth century, the anceftor of the Cottons?, who had been

fettled in the county, for fome generations before that period, became poffefled of
the Landwade eftate by marrying a heirefs of the Haftings family.

In the early part of the fifteenth century, we find the Pigotts poffefled of eftates
at Abington near Shengay, (which from them acquired the name of Abington-
Pigotts,) 'and elfewhere in that neighbourhood : the heirefs of the late Granado
Pigott efq. married the Rev. Wm. Fofter, who has taken the name of Pigotr in
addition to that of his own family, Nearly contemporary with the Pigotts, as to

® With the eftates of the Argentines, the Alingtons inherited the honorable affice of cup-bearer
at the coronation,
* The Rev. Nathanicl Colsille, of Lawfhall in Suﬂ'olk. (brother of the late R Colvﬂle efg- ) ftill
poffeffes fome of the family cftates in Elme, Leverington, and Wifbech,
? A branch of the Cottons of Huntingdonfhire, who' were defeended from the Cottons of Chefhire,
8 diftin& f:mly from thofe above mentioned, fettled in Cambridgethire at Conmngton and Batlay St.
George, in the feventeenth sentwry : they are now extinét,
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eftates pafled by fale to Lord Chancellor Hardwicke, and are now the property of
his grandfon the prefent earl, who has conﬁderably increafed the family eftate,
by recent purchafes.

- Nobility of the County, and Places which have given Title to any Branch of the Peerage.

THE firlt earl of Cambridge, was William Mefchines, a younger fon of Ranulph
Earl of Chefter: David and John fucceffively Earls of Huntingdon, the latter of
whom died in 1237, were alfo Earls of Cambridge. John of Hainault,a re!ataop of
Queen Philippa, and William Marquis of Juliers, had fucceﬁively 1 that title given
to them by King Edward Il : after the 'deceafe of the Marquis, which happened in
1360, the king created his fith fon, Edmund de Langley, Earl of Cambridge ;
to whofe eldeft fon, Edward Duke of York the title defcended, and was afterwards
conferred on his younger fon Richard, who was beheaded in 1415. Richard Plan--
tagenet created Duke of York and Earl of Cambridge by King Henry VI, loft his
life at the battle of Wakefield in 1460. James Marquis of. Hamilton, was, in
1619 created Earl of Cambridge ; the title became extin&. on the death of his
younger fon William Duke of Hamilton, in 1651, The title of Duke of Cam.
bridge was fucceflively conferred on four'fons of -James Duke of York, who all
died young: Queen Anne conferred it on George Auguftus, Ele€or of Hanover,
afterwards King Georgel. In 1801 it was revivedin the perfon of his Royal High.
nefs Adolphus Fredenc, youngeft fon of his prefent Majeity, by whom it is now
enjoyed. :

Philip Lord Hardmcke Lord High Chancellor, was, in 1754 crmted Vifcount -
Royfton and Earl of Ha.rdw:cke, which titles are now enjoyed by his grandfon.
The brave Admiral Ruffell, was in 1697 creited Baron of Shengay in this county,
and Earl of Orford ; which titles became extin& at his death.

Robert de Toni was Lord Toni of Kirtling in this county, and Gilbert Peche, Lord
Peche, of Brune (Bourn) in 1297 ; Sir Edward North, (anceftor of the Earl of
Guildford,) was created Baron North of Kirtling in 1553, and Henry Bromley Baron
Montfort of Horfeheathiin 1741. In 1770, the Right Honorable Charles Yorke,
fecond fon of the Earl of Hardwicke was created Baron Morden of Morden in Cam.
bridgefhire, hut died before the feals were put to the patent..

.9 Brooke ftates thn it was firft enjoyed by the Marquis of Juliers, but tl'mugh the error is not cor-

re€ted by Vincent, it is clear that John of Hainault preceded the marquis in the title. See Gough’s
Camden. !

" In 1733 be had been created Baron Hardwicke of Hardwicke in Gloucefterfhire, s manor
which he poffeffed by purchafe from the family of Trye, befure ke had acquired any property in this
county. .

E =2 " Noblemen’s
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Noblemen's Seatse

THE noblemen’s feats in this county, are Wimpole, the Earl of Hardwicke’s %
and Cheveley, the Duke of Rutland’s; Cheveley is feldlom inhabited by the
duke, except during the thooting feafon. Hare Park, built a few years ago by Earl
Grofvenor on fome land held on leafe under Colonel Jﬂﬂ'refon, is inhabited by his
Lordfhip during the Newmarket Meetings, having been intended merely for that pur-
pofe. Catlage the ancient feat of the Norths, which has lately been pulled down,
had not been inhabited by any of the family fince the death of Lord Elibank’s
lady, who had it in dower from her firft hufband William Lord North. \ Horfeheath ™
the feat of Lord Alington, and afterwards of Lord Montfort, was pulled down in the
year 1777 Gogmagog Hill, fometime the feat of the Earl of Godolphin, is now
the property and refidence of Lord Francis Godolphin Ofborne, younger brother
of the Duke of Leeds.

Baronets-extinét and exifting.

TuE extin baronets of this county, are Sandys of Wilberton, created in 1612,
Ruffell of Chippenham °, 1629, Willys of Fen Ditton, 1641, another branch-of
the fame family *, 1646; Cutts of Childerly created in 166e, Sclater of Cam-
bndge and Bennet of Baberham * the fame year ; Peyton of Doddington, created
in 1660, and a younger brother in 1666 ’, Pickering * of Whaddon created in
1661, Downing * of Eaft Hatley, createdin :663, and Clarke of Snailwell, created
in 1698° The anceftor of Sir Yelyerton Peyton, now of Southampton, was of
Ielham when created a baronetin 1611.

There is not at prefent, one baronet in this county who refides at the place of
which he was defcribed in the patent of his creation; Sir Charles Cotton, the de-
fcendant of Sir John Cotton of Landwade, created a baronet in 1641, has a feat at
Madingley, inherited from the Hindes.

Long-Stanton the feat of the Hattons, whofe anceftor was created a baronet in
1641, is the property of Mr. Thomas Hatton. Doddington, fometime the feat of

 the Peytons, has' been long deferted by the family: Sir Henry Peyton, father of the

s Scc the account of Wimpole in the Parochial Topography. t There is sn engraving
of it in Campbell’s Vitruvivs Britannicus. s Extin& in 1804.
» Extin& in or about the year 1732, v Extinét in 1684, - = Extint by.the deéath
of 8ir Levinus the third baronet. !Botlle:tm&,bntthem]ehubunapmmml
& Extin& in 1705, * Extin& in 1749 ' ¥ Extin& in 1806.
W ; pmfa:t
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Ancient painted Glafs~The mare antient remains of painted glals in the Cam~ -

bridgefhire churches, are neither numerous, nor of any great confequence, a few
fragments in the chancel windows of JH@HEhEati church, appear to be of tge four-
teenth century, and coéval with that building. Of the fame age are fome frag-
ments in the windows of the nave of Trumpington church, among which are the arms
of the family of Trumpington, and of the fee of Ely. In the chancel windowsof the
fame church are confiderable remains, fome of them apparently more ancient
than thofe in the nave; part of one of the fouth windows of this chancel
is reprefented in the annexed plate from the fhield, charged with the device of
three leopards’ bodies, uniting in one head, which appears from his feal to have
been ufed by Edmund Crouchback earl of Lancafter in 1273*; one ﬂmuld
be led to fuppofe, it was executed about his time,

The eaft window of the north aifle of Leverington church; which is in the ftyle
of the fifteenth century, is nearly filled with painted glafs; in the five larger lights
are ten figures of Jewith kings, each attended by a faint or prophet, with 2 motto
on a fcroll ; the feveral divifions between the figures, are formed of vine branches ;
the fmaller compartments are filled with figures of the Virgin Mary, fymbols of
the evangelifts, &e. In a fouth window of the ‘chancel of the fame church
are confiderable remains, confifting of our lady of pity which is in the mid-
dle, on one fide the ﬁgure of 2 knight in plate armour, and his lady in
a blue mantle, on which is a lion rampant, argent, with this mfc.n;t:on on
a ferolly & Liffo fine make us fre, Sfor Jobn's love yat baptifedye ¥ ; on the other
fide are figures of.a knight and his lady kneeling, the knight isin plate armour,
with a red furcoat, the lady in a white mantle, on which is a lion- rampant, gules®,
over them is a fcroll with this infcription ® “ Lady lede us all ﬁ‘a bam to him
yat lay ded in yi barm.*

In Landwade church are fome remains of painted glafs, coevnl with tlp build-
ing, which was ereted in the reign of king Henry the fixth, ‘confifting of feverah
figures of faints and angels. 'In the eaft window of Chrift’s college chapelare fimalk
whole length portraits painted on glafs, of king Henry the feventh, and fome others
of the family of Margaret countefs of Richmond, the foundrefs of the coliey &

= Sandford’s Geneal. Hift. p. 102. 8 Said by Blomefield to'be lhe arms of Bokenham.
b See Blomefield’s Colle&t. Cantab. 243. where this infeription is mmcurately copied; m ur arm”
being given for ¢ in thy barm,” i. e. lap, alloding to the figure of our lady of pi
¢ Thefe were remoyed from a little thapd, faid go have been that of the ‘omxld'n onthgroﬂll fide
0[ the ‘h‘p@lo
The
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. & grage-ftone of white marble in the chancel of Tadlow church, has the figure
of a lady.in a long gown and mantle engraved onit; this figureisa good deal de-
faced, but the following infcription round the edge of the ftone is flill legible :
 Hic jacet corpus Margarete Brogorele quondam uxoris magifiri Willi Brogorele qui
obiit in fofto fancti Valentine Mart'is anmo dii miimo CCCCLXXXXMI In the
chancel of Girtonchurch are two grave-ftones, with brafs plates, of two reftors of that
church in their ecclefiaftical habits; one of them, William Malfter, died in
1493, the other, William Stevyn, in 1497. In one of the chapels on the north fide
of King’s college chapel, in Cambridge, is the grave-ftone of Dr. William Tqwne, .
who died in 1496, with his effigiesin his doftor’s gown, hoed, and bonnet. :

The monument of John Alcock, bifhop of Ely, who died in 1 goo, s on the north-
fide of the fplendid chapel,-ere@ted by him at the eaft end of the north aifle of the
prefbytery of Ely cathedral.. It confifts of the mutilated remains of an emaciated
figure, on analtar tomb much enriched wigh tracery, having the bifhop’s device, a
cock- feveral times repeated..

. To the fifteenth century may alfo be referred the feveralmonuments hereafter men-
tioned, the exa® date of which cannot be afcertained, viz. a grave-ftone in the
_chancel of Horfeheath church with brafs plates, reprefenting a knight in plate ar.
mour and mail gorget, with a very long fword; over whofe head are mutilated figures.
of angels holding his creft ; there has alfo been formerly a Gothic canopy; now
Mtript off. A grave-ftone in the chancel of Hilderfham church, with brafs plates, -
containing the figure of a knight under a Gothic canopy, bare headed, in plate ar-

mour, with a long fword. Another grave-ftone in the nave of Balfham church, .
with brals plates, reprefenting a knight in azmour, bare headed, with a long fword

and a lion at his feet. -

_ On'the north fide of the chancel of Fulbourn chyrch, under a flat arch, ornament-
ed with femi-quatrefoils, is the reprefentation of an emaciated corps in ftone, lying
.on 2 winding theet, faid to have been the monument of John Careway, who was
redor of shat church about the middle of the fifteenth century. In the chgncel of
Lolworth church there is a flab of white marble, with the figure of two ladies in the
drefs. of Edward the fourth’s reign engraved on it ; the infcription round the edge
is nearly obliterated, but from the arms it appears to have been defigned for fome
of the family of Langley, who poffefled the manor at that ime. Two mutilated
effigies of a kpight and his lady lying on the ground behind the altar in Borough-
green church, are probably fome of the Ingoldefthorp family, which became poffefl-
ed of the manor of Borough-green, in the early part of this century.

XVith
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by the fame title a8 Fen-Ditton ", is now the: property of Thomss Panten,” Efy: of
Newmarket. S N :

The Mafter and Fellows of St. Jobn's College, being impropriators of the great
and finall tithes, had an allotment of land in lieu"thereof, when this parifhs was in.
clofed purfuant to ana& of parliament pafled in 1804 : the college prefenss to the
benefice, which is a perpetual curacy.

Ho#seHEATH, in the hundred of €hilford, and deanery of Camps, lies three miles
and a half from Linton, and 14 miles and a half from Cambridge. At an early period
the families of Audley °, Lymbury® and Horfeth or Horfeheath 9, had manors in
this parifh : the manor belonging to the Audleys,. being held. of the honour of
Richmond, muft have-been the fame, which when the furvey of Domeiday was
taken, belonged to Alan Earl of Britanny and Richmond ; and had been part of
the eftate of Queen Editha. Lymburys, fo called from its poflefiors, was held
under the earls of Oxford, of the honour of Hevenyngham, by the fervice.of heid-
ing the Easl's- ftirrup, whenever he thould mount his palfrey, in the prefence of the
owner of that manor'. Horfeth-hall was. held by the Horfeths, under the
Earls of Gloucefter, as of the honour of Clare. The Alingtons, who eventually.
became pofiefled of the whole manerial property of the parith, firft acquired the
manor, which had belonged to the Audleys: they fettled at Horfeheath before
the year 1429 *: William Alington, Efg.,. who was treafurer of the exchequer for
Ireland * had the King’s licence to make a park at Horfeheath in. 1448 °: Sir Wil..
liam Alington, probably his fon, was in 1479 appointed one. of the privy council
with a handfome falary *: in 1538 Sir Giles Alington purchafed of William
Methwold the manor of Bower-hall in “Horleheath *, which had: been in his
family from the reign of RichardIL. 7; if not before. This Sir Giles Alington *
was Mafter of the Ordnance to King Henry VIIL and having been at the.
fiege of Boulogne, brought from thence a bell, which, within the memory.
of man, was ufed as a dinner bell at Horfcheath-Hall’.  Sir Giles Alington, '
or his Son of the fame name, entertained Queen Elizabeth at Horfeheath-
in the year 1578, in her progrefs from Norwich. to London . Another

" See p. 174. °® Temp. Hen. IIL. Edw. I. and Edw, II.  * Temp, Edw. I. Edw. III.
* Temp. Edw. IIL. Ric. 1I. Efcheat Rolls. * Efcheat Roll, ! Sce a tomb of the
family in the parifh church. * Pat. 7. Hen.IV. * Layer's MSS8. We have not
been able to find the grant. ¥ Pat. 18. Edw. IV. * Cole’s MSS. - 7 Efch. 15. Ric. II.
* Prefixed to 2 fmall folio called ¢ the Mirrour of Good Manners,”’ written - by Alexander Bar-
elay, is a wooden print of the author prefenting his werk to Sir Giles Alington, as his patron. -
* Coles’s MSS. * Carter 207,
’ 1 Sir
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Bir Giles Alington did penance at Paul’s Crofs, and in St. Mary's church at
Cambridgein the year 1631, for marrying his own nicce, the danghter of his fifies
Mrs. Dalton; the fame punithment was infli®ed on the lady, who died of the
{mall pox in the year 1644¢: Sir Giles was alfo fined in the Star-Chamber
the fum of 120001.°, which by a writer not very well zffefted to the houfe
of Stuart!, is faid to have been fhared between Queen Henrictta Maria, and
the Earl of Holland. William Alington, who was created an Irifa Peer, by
the title of Lord Alington, in 1646, built a magnificent manfion at Horfeheath,
after the defign of Webb, in 1665, at the expence of 70,000.1. This eftate was fold,
with the houfe, about the year 1687, for only 42,000 /. to John Bromley, Efy,,
who expended 30,000/ more in building 5, and died in 1707 : his grandfon was
in 1741 created Lord Montfort of Horfeheath. Thowmas, the fecond Lord Mont-
fort, having involved himfelf in embarrafiments, was obliged to fell this eftate : the
advertifement for the fale, which bears date 1776, befides the manors of Horfe.
heath -and Limbury’s, already fpoken of, enumerates Jacob’s, which had belonged
to the family of Jacob, who were of Horfeheath®, and of Bromley in Middlefex ;
Carbonels, in Horfeheath and Shudy-Camps, which in the reign of Henry VII, had
belonged to the family of Gardiner'; Barmham or Barham (Burnham); Eynelt
{Enhale) and Stretly-Hall in Weft.Wickham ; Goodrige ; and Yend. We have not
met with any notice of the two laft mentioned manors, nor do we know in what
parifhes they are fitvated. The fplendid manfion®, on which fuch large fums of
money had béen expended, was fold in 1777 for the materials: the hall was so
feet by 4o, and 4o feet in height *: it had been firipped of its furniture in 1973,
and the valuable portraits ® removed. The park, which contained 880 acres *, has
been difparked. The eftate was purchaled in 1783 by Stanlake Batfon, Efg. who
is the prefent owner. o

- * Sir Giles Alington married Dorothy, daughter of Michael Dalton, author of the Country Juilice,
by his wife Mary, Sir Giles’s own fifter: it is fomewhat remarkable, that this inceftuous marriage
fhould have been celebrated (Dee. 2, 1630 ) at the parith church of Welt-Wratting, where her &-

ther Mr. Dalton refided ; by which it feems probable that it was not without the knowledge, if it

had not the approbation of that eminent Jwyer. - % Banderfon’s Life of King Chares I,
= ¢ Ibid. ! Bir Edward Peyton in his ¢ Divine Cataiftrophe of the Houfe of Stuart,”
Mr. Cole in his MS. colleétions, from the information of Lord Montfort. b Kimber's
Baronetage. ' ' Efcheat Roli. * There is an elevation of this houfe in Campbeli’s
Vitravivs Britannigus. ! Cole. = Among thefe were Oliver Cromweill, by Walker, Beau
Fielding in armour by Lely ; Sir Godfrey Kueller by himfelf; and Lord and Lady Derwentwater by
the fame artift. Colels MSS, * Sir Giles Alington had the king’s licence to enlafpe it in
1550, Cole’s MSS. . '
Vor. Ik, Ff in
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In the parifh church are feveral monuments, and other memorials of the Aling-
ton family, the earlieft of which bears date 1429: there is a dormitory for the
Montfort family. The governors of the charter-houfe are patrons of the rectory.

~JerLeTON; in the hundred-of Whittlesford,and deanery of Camps, lies about
five miles - fouth.-weft of Linton, and about nine fouth-eaft of Cambridge. There
was in ancient times a priory of nuns at this place, founded, as fome fay, by
Aubrey de Vere, the firlt Earl of Oxford, or, according to the opinion of others,
by his father-in-law, Sir William de Cantilupe®. The priorefs had a grant from
King Henry IIl. of a market on Thurlday at Ickleton, and a fair? ; the latteris ftill
continued, being'now held on the 22d of July. The annual revenues of this priory,
were valued in the reign of King Henry VIIL at 71 L gs. 10fd. That monarch,
in 1538, granted the, fite of the priory, with the church-yard, and all the de-
mefnes, the fair9, the manor which had belonged to the abbey of Calder, in
Cumberland, the manor, which had belonged to the abbey of Weft-Dereham, in
Norfolk, and a-grange called the Hovel, which had belonged to the priory of Tyl-
tey, in Effex, (all in the parifh of Ickleton " ,) to the Bifhop of Ely, and his fuccef-
fors®, in exchange for Hatfield. ‘In 1600, thefe eftates reverted to the crown, by
the furrender of Bithop Heton : in'the reign of King James L, they were the pro-
perty of Sir John Wood, Knight® i the prefent proprietor is the Honourable
Charles Percy Wyndham, who inherits from Percy Earl of Thomond.

Aymer de Valence, Earl of Pembroke, becamp poflefled of a manor in Ickleton,
in the reign of Edward L., by a grant of the prior of Montmorel °.

Another manor was in the family of Lymbury, in the re:gns of King Edward 11
and Edward IIL ; in the fucceeding reign it paffed\by marriage to Sir Henry Tre-
vett*; a third was fucceflively in the families of Segrave and Moubray ; John
Moubray, Duke of Norfolk, was feifed of it in 14617 it is probable that this
was the fame eftate, which, in the Efcheat Roll of King James I., is called the
Manor of Brayes; a great part of the property, which pafled by inheritance from
Thomas Moubray, Duke of Norfolk, to the Marquis of Berkeley, having been
gwen by that nobleman to Sir Reginald Bray. Lionel Copley, Efq. had a manor
in Ickleton in 1491, which was held under the Earls of Oxford,

* Tanuer. ? Cart. 11, Heary IIIL. p" 1. m. 11. ‘It appeinthemrket_
kad been then difcontinued. * Thefe are now deicribed as the manors of Priors, Caldres, Dus-
hams, apd Heovells, in Ickleton. * Reword in the Augmentation Qffice. ¢ Efchea
‘Boll. S Pat, 28, Edward L. * Efcheat Rolls. 7 Ibid..

Fhe
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anecdotes are current, as to the circumftances of the vifit®. Henry Cromwell’s fon
mortgaged the Spinney Abbey eftate, in the year 1637, to Philip Welbore; it was
afterwards purchaled by Edward Ruffell, Earl of Orford, and is now by inherit-
ance from Charles Duke of Somerfet, the property of the Earl of Aylesford, who
is impropriator of the great tithes* of Wicken, and patron of the curacy.

In the year 1321, Mary Lady Baffingbourn, founded a hofpital at Wicken for
feven poor old men; it was attached to the priory of Spinney, the monks of
which were bound to provide for each of the penfioners, a farthing loaf, a hernng,
and a pennyworth of ale da:ly, beﬁdes fuel, and clothing®. There are no’re-
‘mains-of-this—hofpitaly———

WesT-WiCKHAM, in the hundred of Chilford, and deanery of Camps, lies
about three miles nearly North of Linton, and about ten fouth.eaft of Cambridge.
There were anciently two manors in this parith, called De la Hayes and Burn-
‘hams*, from families to which they belonged in the thirteenth and the early part
of the fourteenth centuries : both thele manors, in or before the reign of Henry
VIIL, were united in the Alington family ¢, and paffed with Horfelieath; until the
fale of that eftate by Lord Montfort : they were purchafed about the year 1783 by
the lateEarl of Hardwicke, and defcended with the title to his nephew, the pre-
fent earl, who has the impropriation, and is patron of the curacy.

The manor of Wickham-Wolves, of which we find no other notite, was held
under the Alingtons, by Edward Earl of Worcefter, in the reign of Edward IV*,
The manor of Enhale, or Enhall, now called Eynell, in this parith, was held un.
der the Bardolfs, by the family of Manners, in the reign of Edward I, and af-
terwards paffed fucceffively to the families of Duttertone and Harlefton : it conti-
nued in the latter more than a century, until the attainder of Richard Harle.
fton, in 1476, after this it was fucceflively in the Alingtons and Bromleys, and
is now the proferty of the Earl of Hardwicke, In the year 1326, Dionyfia -
de la Riviere, heirefs of the Peverells, who from an early period had poffefled
the manor of Stretly in this pariih conveyed it to Robert Pelican®. Sir Guy
de Bryen, in 1370, gave a manor in Stretly to the hofpital of St. Bartholomew in
Smithfield!. There was another manor in Stretly, called Stretly Hall, held un.

® See Noble'a Memoirs of the Cromwells. * The reétory had been given to the priory of
Spumcy by Sir Hugh Malebiffe, end.appropriated to the canons of that honfe, - * Tanuer.
¢ Efcheat Rolls. 4 Ibid, Edward IV. and Henry VIIL * Efcheat Roll, Ed-
ward IV: 1 Ihid. Edward I. Edward II. Edward IIL. and Edward 1V, ' Ef.
eheat Roll. * Cl 19 Edward II. I. Pat. 44 Edward III. .
Vou. IL Oo _ der
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\_The Rev. Mr. Nourse, sequestrator.
Bishop’s impropriations, 7s, 6d.
Births 11, burials 11.

HORNINGSEY.

A village 5 miles nearly north of Cambridge, 11
west of Newmarket, 14 north of Linton, 14 south of
Ely, and 54 north of London.

It was formerly noted for a monastery of royal
foundation, and a house of, canons-regular, destroyed
by the Danes in 870, and never after repaired.

Frecholders:

Thomas Graves (Bottisham) William Wilton.
Godfrey Roberts

It is & curacy donative, dedicated to St. Peter ; not
in charge. Patron, St. John's College. Situate in
Flendish hundred, and Cambridge deanery. Feast,
fourth Sunday after Trinity.

The Rev. Dr. Burton, curate.

Bishop’s impropriations, 6s.

HORSEHEATH.

A village bordering on the counties of Suffolk and
Easex, 12 miles south-east of Cambridge, 8 south-
east of Linton, 16 north-east of Royston, and 45
north of Lendon.

- This parish for many generations belonged to the
ancient and noble families of the Argentons and
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Arlingtons. William Arlington, esq. was high sheriff
for this county in the reign of Henry V. and member
of parliament for the same the seventh of Henry V1.
and had his seat in this village: where was also a
noble seat, belonging to the late lord Arlington, but
now in the possession of the Bromleys by purchase.
The right hon. Henry Bromley, the present pos-
heath, by his present mejesty, in 1748.

The house stands on an eminence, 20 28 to com-
mand a prospect to the opposite side of the connty,
which is about twenty miles. The building is lofty,
and the apartments very large; but the two stair-
cases on each side of the hall occupy such large
spaces, as to lessen the number of rooms one would
expm to find from the outward grandeur of the

The hall is very noble, being 35 feet square, and
80 high; the approach to which is a noble flight of
stone steps, the floor being elevated 9 feet from
the ground, so that the servants’ offices are beneath.
But besides these there are two wings of offices of a
large extent, so that the whole front is mearly 500
feet in length.

This worthy lord hath lately made many additions
to both house and park, and hath made the roads
new on every side thereof for three miles round it,
and hath, at a great expense, adorned and besutified
the house.

In 1578, queen Elizabeth, in her progrem from
Norwich to London, was entertained at this seat by
Sir Giles Aslington, the worthy owner thereof.

(R TRE {:ﬂ{"aﬁ?{}
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Most of the lands in this and the neighbouring
villages are so full of the plant or herb called melilot,
a8 to poison the land; and the seed mixes with the
éorn in such quantities, as to give a most nauseous
taste to their bread, which is very disagreeable to
strangers, though the inhabitants, from long custom,
little mind it.

Reformation, 1648.— January 5. We break
down 2 crucifixes, 4 pictures of the prophets Egekiel,
Daniel, Zephaniah, and Malachi, and two others,
with 40 superstitious pictures.”

Frecholders.

William Bromley, esq. (Lin- Anthony Flack
ton) Edward Basset, cl.
John Clayton (Balsham) Edward Webb
Gilbert Hallock John Purchis
Thomsas Webb (Ashden) Samuel Rimbald
Richard Pettyt (Linton) Daniel Allen.

It is a rectory, dedicated to All Saints; valued in
the king’s books at 18/ 6s. 8d. Patron, Charter-
- house, London. Situate in Chilford hundred, and
Camps desnery. Feast, June 5.

‘The Rev. Mr. Barker, rector.

Bishop’s procurations, rector, 2s.

Births 6, burials 12.

HYSTON.

Atalerablyhme village, 8 miles nearly north of
Cambridge, 15 nearly south of Ely, snd 58 north
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HOR
century since. 'There are places of worship for Inde.
pendents and Wesleyan Methodists,

HORNSEY (87, Many), a parish, in the union of
Epuonrow, Finsbury Division of the hoadred of Os-.
SULSTONE, county of Mippiesex, 5§ miles (N. by w.)
from London; comprising the greater part of the village
of Highgnte, and the hamiets of Crouch-End, Muswell-
Hill, and Stroud-Green, end containing 4856 inhabit-
ants, The manor of Hornsey, anciently called Haringay,
has from & remote period belonged to the se2 of London,
and the bishops had formerly e park, in which was a
lodge, or fort, memorable as the place where, in 13886,
Thomas of Woodstock, Duke of Gloucester, and other
noblemen, aszembled to form a leagne sgainst the favon-
ritea of Richard IL; and here Edward V, and Henry
VIL, on their succeeding to the crown respectively, were
met by deputations from the citizens of London. The
village is agrecably situated in a vale, through which
passes the New River, and is encircled by hilis com-
mending varied and beautiful viewa of London and the
adjoining country; it conteins many detached villas,
with gardens and pleasure grounds, end is one of the
most agrecable places of residence, or occasional resors,
in the vicinity of the metropolis. Lande held under the
lord of the manor descend, accordiug to the custom of
gavelkind, in common to all the sons or daughters of a
customary tenant. The parish is within the jurisdiction
of the court of requests held in Kingsgate-street, Hol.
born, fur the recovery of debts under 402, The living
is a rectory, velued in the king's books at £22; present
et income, £493; patron, Bishop of London, The
church, consisting of a nave, two aisles, and a western
tower, was rebuilt of brick coleured to imitate stone, in
the early style of English architecture, in 1833, with the
exception of the lower part of the tower, which contains
the bells, and which is surmounted with an embattled
parapet of freestone; it contains 300 free sittings, the
Incorporated Society having granted £700 in aid of the
expense : the former edifice is said to have been built
about the year 1500, from the ruine of the fortress in
the bishop's park. An additional church has been
erected at Highgate, under the act of the 58th of George
ilL, and the contiguous parts of this parish, and those
of the parish of St. Pancyas, have been united and now
form a peparste district; and it is in contemplation to
erect o chapel of ease at Muswell-Hill by subscription.
At Cronch-End there is a place of worship for Baptists,
Here is a National school for ebout 70 boys, and ano-
ther for 60 girls: for the former a handssme scheol-
house, with & dwelling for the master, has been recently
built on the road to Muawell-Hill; and for the latter
@ neat building in the Elizabethan style, with e house
for the mistress, on the road to Crouch-End, Several
benefactions have been made for apprenticing poor boys,
and for other charitable purposes. At Buswell-Hill, to
the north of Homneey, was snciently & chapel, dedicated
to Oor Lady of Muswell, much resorted to by pilgrims
before the Reformation, on account of a mineral spring
called Moungsewell, or Biuswell, famed for the supposed
miraculons cure of a king of Scotland, and etill in re.
pute for its medicinal propertiea: the chapel was an
appendage to the priory of Clerkenwell ; 2pd the manor
of Biuswell, though locally in the parish of Hornsey, is
subordinate to that of Clerkenwell,

HORNTON (8. Jounw 78E Barrist), a perish, in

Vour. IL—465

HOR

the nnion of Bansury, hundred of Broxmam, county
of OzForp, 6] miles (N. W. by W.) from Banbury;
containing 551 inbabitants. The living is a vicarage
not in charge, united to that of Hozley. Here is a
HWational school endowed with a rent-charge on Iand
given by John Fox, amounting to £14 per annum.

HORSEDOWN, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
county of Devon.—See AXMOUTH,

HORSEHEATH (Arr Sainzs), & parish, in the
union of LinTow, hundred of Cmivromp, connty of
Camprinoe, 34 miles (B. by N.) from Linton; con-
taining 430 inhabitants. The living ie a rectory, valued
in_the king's books at £13. 6. 8.; present net income,
£3847 ; patrons, Governors of the Charter-house, Lon-
don. The charch is supposed to have been built, sbout
the beginning of the 15th century; it has a pretty
chancel, which deviates a little to the north of the line
of the nave, and containg ancient monuments of the
Alington family, Here is a meeting-house for Indepen-
dents ; also a Sunday National scheol, A fair is held
on the 5th of June,

HORSEHOUSE, & chapelry, in the parish of Co-
VEREAM, wapentake of Hane-Weer, North Riding of
the county of Yorg, 7 miles (8. W.) from Middleham :
the population is returned with the parigh. The living
is & perpetusl curacy, annexed to that of Coverham,

HORSELEY, a township, in the parish of Eccrzs-
HaLL, Northern Division of the bundred of PinzniLy
and of the county of Sravrorp, 2} miles (8. W.) from
Eccleshall ; containing 491 inhabitanta,

HORSELL (S7. M4ny), & parish, in the union of
Cuerrsey, First Division of the hundred of Gopirzy,
Western Division of the county of Surrey, 4} miles
(N. W. by w.) from Ripley; containing 673 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy; net income, £83;
patrons, four Landownera. The church is in the early
style of Enpglish architecture, and contains several an-
cient brasses and two handsome monuments, one to the
memory of James Fenn, Esq., the other to Sir Jobn
Williamn Rose, Knt. The parish receives benefit from
Henry Smith's charity, The Basingstoke canal passes
through it.

HORSEMONDEN (Sr. Manoszer), a parish, in
the union of Tonnryvee, hundred of Brencavey and
Honsexonpzn, lathe of Avirzsrorp, Western Division
of the county of Kent, 23 miles (N. E. by N.) frond
Lawberburst ; containing 1197 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, valued in the king's books at £26.3.9.;

resent net income, £800; patron and incumbent, Rev,
. M. Smith Marrjott, The church is situated at the
extremity of the parish, and upwards of two milea from
the villege. A fair for cattle and toys is held on July
26th, A scheol was endowed, in 1792, with £1000 by Sir
Charles Booth; and an additional benefaction of £200
was made by Dy, Marriott, the late rector ; the produce
is now applied to the support of a National school.

HORSENDON (Sr. Bhwownaze), a parish, in the
union of Wyconee, hundred of Avressuny, county of
Buckinciiam, 7 wiles (W. by N.) from Great BMissen-
den; containing 37 inhebitants. The living is & dis-
charged rectory, valued in the king's books at £6. 17.;
present net income, £132; patron, J. Grobb, Esq.
During the parliamentary war the manor-house, then
the property of Sir John Denham, was occupied by a
garrison for the king, o
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wes YWin, carpenter 11ill Richard, fatmer l‘{gulzardsrm Murs. dMary Aun, beer rolle
Tarnelius, beer relailer Hepwood Mrs. Mary, 111:UI'll1i'ii§h r Ripsher ¥wan, saddler & hartiess maker
Ja Phomas, butelter Houghton Dardel, shoemarer Faville John, carrier
pzeph, farmer Jus h‘umuel, furmer Bpicer .foim, beer retailer
Srnseph, ¢ Red Lion! Mein Edward, sheem aker Rgale Thomas, carpentey
“Fhomas, bricklayer Marking lsaac, furmer Wilson Stephen, firmer
I OrrioE—Willkun  ipsher, postuwster.  Letters A iyh Coustaile for T,E:I.».Ettfc,‘_-/bm Distriel, Swan Ripsh
o from Safiren Walden per foot post 10 #an.; & are ‘Lal!ccmr of Queen's Lares, Jolm Ginn [marning &
atehed & paio Carkier 2o Cansunipcl,—~doln Swville, tnes. & sut.
S QEON, a small parish 2% wiles north of Cam- | Noxth Stow and Uuiou of Chesterton, This place was the resi-
The elhureh is 2 neat little gothic edifice in u very 3 dence of Elizabeth Weodgock, who on ber retura from Camn-
il npot.  Living, & dischurged vicarage in the areh-) hris};zc, February, 1730, was enveloped in adrit ol spowwder
v snd diocese of Ely. The present incumisut §s the ] whichh she reweined nearly eight days and nights. she
{1, Busby, teilow ol $t, Joha's Collexe Cambridee. [Tere L was raken out alive ami lived nutil the July follswing in the
1t 1= it the Hundred of 'sine year. Acres; 1,360 popu ation, 213

s
i

aweharities of smullawousit.

H

Tev, Henry Hutehinsen, x4 | French Jobi, farmer ! Letters received througlh the Unm-
TRADERS. Lawson Robert, Jull irnn, & farnmer I bridge post office
iHlirm, beer retailer Sanuders William, farmer

e AT is an extensive village aud parishin the Fiun- ! shich s & neat edifice, and gmbic stvie ol architecture, b it
if Sitaplon, distant from Newmarket & miles north, The | vicarage in the gift of the Hishep of Rechester. Here e
‘und netrhbourhood is famous for the production of | four Dissenting chapels, vis, oue belonging to the Methe-
zane, which is considered to make the strongest and | dists, two ta the Baptists, snd one Calvinist. The area
ine in the country, great quantities of which ure is 4,306 acres, and the populetion in 1841 was 2,147,
to Wisheach, ipswicﬁ, and other parts. The chureh,
s GRNTRY. 1Diver Johm, gardener & farmer yHunre dolm, fanner
1o Rev. Ralph, at, [evrate] | Drake Johu, faemer ‘Nowmne Mrs. Sai
Mra *Drake Wi nasor of {unes  Norman Fredericl
' Fleteher Lldward, earrier Parr John, shopkeeper
P Pleteher Thomas, farmer Pritty Thonws, warket gardeney
{ Fleteher William, beer vetalier ‘Robius (Geo. Fletcher, timber, coal
Frohawk Bdward, farmer . meneral mereht limed urver & farmer
, TRADLRS. yout Johs, iwner .
ndfrey, sarpenter Pyson Joli, procer, draperd tal.ehndler.
iaes, * Ferry House’ {Headows Henry Reader, rurgeon
ohn, farmer Goldemith Thomas,miller
weplh, shopkeeper CGoldinye Dauiel, buteher e coal dagder tinton Habert, farnmer
asepth, arecer & draper 'Human Jebn, farmer ndul Thos, cotnmuen brawer, alfier s
IO}'!'iS, White Horse commercial’ Humun Nathuan, shovmaker& beershap ! fanner ’
ider & : CFuman William, jun, Geiffin o [Taylor Thoras, tailoy
aim John, farmer CTleman William, tarmer f“'u-’.sm‘. Lage, * dnehes’
wairiepl, stene merchont Johian Willlam, blucksmith ‘Watson Hobert, © Locd”
.,‘J,?h“; plumber & shopkeeper  « Kuight Ldward, fanne: Woensls Jumes, taniner
f{,ilﬁmus, Isteker D aight Wi, miller Wybrow Jlrs, Sary, fwiwer
S shovmaker Murtin Robert, wheelwrigldt :
g’il'gh(*‘l:i-fh»hn Coopey, . Letters received | LUAm wins - Fletelrer ol ok 1o Newnovke!;
ithenball & aane, dispaiched 5 pas | %o & frow Cambridae on satnrday

- .
Wm;i:"r = pacish in the Hundred of steplos, in the §the population 123 4
",‘,m;f;:{‘}‘é'ldge‘, distant fron: London 86 wiles, et 4 | trom the broul, un wiieh i st
sont i‘m:lf 'b:{he chureh js g vectory, the preperty ofpor ket in the Britops, being o connnen ;
j’m“m -_I_?Li‘-""', the Re‘:'. Wi, Go-.l‘ii'e)', Modes there | tham te fuath streams, as in Borks, Wesindoreland, Sussen,
{23 skl }Ui:“t'l"“ﬂl(’-(_1 tn this chureh, the porelt being on g and Wilis.
5 * 10 biihling,  The arven & A geres, and
* Hhes \;_¢_i{3§'1‘1u: J Tubi ok, farmer P Yetiepscesived thrangd the 3

Yo Williun, 3. 1 Huvvey Thuoas, farmer x stenanl do Panarket other

|

My, Godirey
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244 CHILFORD HUXNDRED,

CHILFORD HUNDRED.

Which forms the S.E. angle of the county is bounded on the 8. by Essex, on
the E. by Suffolk, on the W. by the hundreds of Whittlesford and Triplow, and
on the N. by Radfield and Flendish Hundreds. It comprises the market-town
of Linton, and fen parishes extending over an area of 21,430 acres.

POPULATION. Ill ble
PARISHES, &c, Acres. | Houses. g Vilng:
Males. |[Females| Total.
2
Abington, Great ............ 1,600| 64 | 180 [ 178 | 868 | 1,703
Abington, Little ............| 1,120| 60 -| 126 161 | 277 1 1,208
Babrabam .........ceceer.. 2,350 b4 | 114 ] 103 | 2172131
Bartlow, Great ............ 320! 20 41| 48| 89| 538
Castle-Camps .. weeee.| 2,613 188 486 | 418 | 854 | 2,670
Hildersham ..........coauu. 1,450 50 119 | 119 | 238 687
Horscheath ........c.cee..... 1,677 106 | 256 | 267 | 528 | 2,058
T . .| 8,663 400 | 899 | 939 |1,838 | 5,149
Pampisford ......... N 1,600 78 | 167 | 166 | 333 | 1,838
Sludy-Camps ...............| 2,300| .78 195 | 207 | 402} 2,268
Wickham, West ............ 2,937l 122 | 283 | 289 { G672 9514
Total...............[1,480| 1,215| 2,816 2,885 | 5,701 | 22,761

(Eljntmtﬁ uf the Fundred of Ehilford

As abstracted from the parliamentary reports published in 1837, shewing the
date of each bequest, name and object of the donor, and present value.

Date. Donors and nature of gifts. To what place and purposes applied.  Annual Felue.
1524 John A. Bolton, rent charge, ... Great Abington par., church & poor £0 6
1524 _Ditto ... ... ditto ... Little Abington parish,  ditto 06
1722 Levinus Bush, Esq. £1000., now consisting of a rent charge of £75. per}

34 3

- ®

annum, aud £1,990. 10s. 9d. South sea annuities, Babraham parish
1728 James Bugh, £100., qu)aople, schools, and apprenticing children,
1728 Judith™Bennett w. ditto ... ditte ditto ..

— Rev. Thomas Cmer.mhecharge Bartlow parish, ... poor ... 017 8
1784 Bartholomew Stavers, £100. ... Castle Campe parish, ~ poor. &e... 310 0
1524 John A. Bolton, rent charge, " Hildersham pu'uh clm:ch & poor 068
1573 John Walker, rent charge, ... ditto ... poor 100
— ﬁhurchhnds.ﬂl. Ir. - o5 xtto &is = 8§50 .
— argaret's green, 12a. ntm'e. tto for umnng rec—
% tor's and otherl'clz:wl, worth .. 1.0 0°¢0
1626 Thomas Wakefield, 11A. 83, 207, Horseheath parish, poor ... .. 11 00
~— The Town Green do, et 500
1551 William Th rent charge, Linton parish oo al A0
~— Elizsbeth Harrison, £100. ...  do. bmdmgom- 5 00
— The Pest honse, and piece of land do. used for paris urpom worth § 0 0
— Almshouses, (8 single rooms) and workhonse, do. let for we ... 30 0 0
— Church and poor estate, 21a. Or. 27r. Pampisford parish .. .;1 lg ;
,— Donor upknown, land, Shudy Camps parish .., poor.. ...
Total, e DU L. L, £268 12 0

HORSEHEATH PARISH

Is bounded on the south by Shudy Camps, on the north by West Wickham, on
the west by Linton, and on the east by the county of Suffolk. It contains 1677
acres ; the amount of assessed property is £2,947., and the population in 1801
was 343 ; in 1881, 430; and in 1841, 523 souls. The soil varies from a light
to a heavy land, and the principal owner is Stanlake Batson, Esq.
Manors.—The families of Audley, Lymbury, and Horseth or Horseheath, bad
manors here at an early period. The family of Allington, who settled here about
the year 1429, became possessed of the whole manorial property of the parish.
“ Wm, Allington, Esq.” says the Magna Britannia, “ who was treasurer of the



HORSEHEATH PARISH. 251

exchequer for Ireland, had the king’s licence to make a park at Horseheath in
1448 8ir William Allington, probably his son, was in 1479 appointed one of
the privy council : in 1528 Sir Giles Allington purchased of William Methwold
the manor of Bower-hall in Horse-heath, which had been in his family from the
reign of Richard II., if not before. This Sir Giles Allington was master of the
Ordnance to King Henry VIII., and having been at the siege of Boulogns,
brought from thence a bell, which, within the memory of man, was used as a din-
ner bell at Horseheath-Hall. Sir Giles Allington, or his son of the same name,
cutertained queen Elizabeth at Horseheath in the year 1578, in her progress
from Norwich to London. Another Sir Giles Allington did penance at Paul’s
Cross, and in St. Mary’s-church at Cambridge, in 1631, for marrying his own
nieoe, the daughter of his sister Mrs. Dalton ; the same punishment was inflicted
on the lady, who died of the small pox in 1644.” Wm. Allington, who was
arested an Irish peer by the title of lord Allington in 1646, built a magnificent
mension here in 1665, at a cost of £70,000. This house and estate was sold
sboat the year 1687 for only £42,000, to John Bromley, Esq., who expended
£80,000. more in building, and died in 1707 ; his grandson was created lord
Moatford, of Horseheath in 1741. Thomas, his son, having become embarrassed
vas obliged to sell this estate in 1776 ; the splendid mansion, the hall of which
a3 50 feet by 40, and 40 feet in height, was stripped of its furniture and por-
tnits in 1775, and in 1777 sold for the materials. The park, which contained
880 acres, has been disparked, and the estate was purchased in 1783 by Stan-
lake Batson, Esq.

T8¢ Village of Horseheath, which is small, is pleasantly situated on an eminence
i the eentre of the parish, about 3 miles east from Linton, and 14 S.E. from
Cambridge.

Zhe Churck, dedicated to All Saints, is an ancient edifice ; the chancel contains
some begatiful monuments of the Allington family, and there is a peal of 4 bells
uthe western tower. The living is a recfory in the deanery of Camps, rated in
the K. B. at £18. 6s. 8d., but now worth over £450. per annum. The patron-
age is vested in the Charter-house, and the Rev. Wm. Battiscombe, M.A., is the
Present rector, The tithes were commuted in 1839 : rectorial, £450; rent-
charge to Trinity college, £12. 10s.; £2. 8s. to the rector of Bartlow; £2. to
the vicar of Shudy Camps, and 4s. to the rector of Castle Camps.

The School, supported by voluntsry contribution, and conducted on the church
of Eagland principle, is well attended.

Horseheath Lodge, the seat of Stanlake Batson, Esq., is situate about one mile
N.W. of the village. ,

Ror the charilies of the parish see the table prefixed to this bundred ; and for
Qe Roman way, which passes through the parish, see page 35.

s 2
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Batson Stanlake,Esq.,Horse-
heath Lodge
Battiscombe Rev. Wm., M.A.

Farmers.
Cooke Grimwood, Park farm
King Alfred
Purkis William
Wakeling William

CHILFORD HUNDRED.

Webb John, Church farm
Willings John, Sherwood
green

Willings Richard
Traders.

Cole James, beer retailer

Cornwell David, shopkeeper

Hymns Israel, vict., Red Lion

King William, blacksmith

Ling Isaac, schoolmaster

Roope Charles, shoemaker

Simkin Wm., beer retailer

Turner Edwin, Wm., vict,
Montford Arms

Willings E., schoolmistress

Letters are received through the Linton Post Office.




714

HIGH SHERIFFS POR THE COUXNTIRS OF

Bigh Hherifls.

For the Counties of Cambridge and Hunlingdon, from the First of Henry VIIL.,
(1509) o the present year, 1850.

1509,
10,
11,
12,
13,
14.
15,
16,

17,
18,
19.
20,
21,
22,
23,
24,
25,
26,
27,
28,
29,
30,
31,
32,
33,
34,
35,
36,
87,

Marked * were afterwards Knighted.
Reign of Henry VIIL
. Francis Hasilden, Esq., Steeple Morden, Cambridgeshire.
. John Paris, Esqg., Linton, ditto.
. Giles Allington, Knt., Horseheath ditto.
. Thomas Cotton, Esq., Connington, ditto.
. Thomas Thursby, Esq., Caxton, ditto.
. Ralph Chamberlayne, Knt., Kingston-Woodhouse, ditto.
. John Paris, Esq., Linton, ditto.
. John Cutts, Kut., Childerley, ditto. (He was the first Sheriff who
served for both Connties.)
9. William Tanfield, Esq., Everton, Huntingdonshire.
10, Anthony Mallory, Esq., Papworth-Agnes, Cambridgeshire.
11. Giles Allington, Knt., Horseheath, ditto.
12. Francis Hasilden, Steeple-Morden, ditto.
13. John More, Esq., Whaddon, ditto.
14. John Huddleston, Knt., Sawston, ditto.
15. Anthony Hansard, Esq., March, Isle of Ely.
16. John Huddlestone, Knt., Sawston, Cambridgeshire.
17. Robert Peyton, Esq., Isleham, ditto.
18. Thomas Pygot, Esq., Abington-Pygot, ditto.
19. Rcbert Apreece, Esq., Washingley-House, Huntingdonshire.
20. John Paris, Esq., Linton, Cambridgeshire.
21. Anthony Hansard, Esq., March, ditto.
22. Giles Allington, Knt., Horseheath, ditto.
23. Anthony Mallory, Esq., Papworth-Agnes, ditto,
24. Thomas Ellyott, Knt., Carlton, ditte.
25. Richard Sapcott, Kuot., Elton, Huntingdonshire.
26. Thomas Chicheley, Esq., Wimpole, Cambridgeshire.
27. Robert Peyton, Esq., Isleham, ditto,
28. Thomas Cromwell, Esq.
29. Thomas Megges, Esq.

Q0 =3 O v GO RO




CAMBRIDGE AND HUNTINGDON. 715

1588, 80. Thomas Hutton, Esq., Dry-Drayton, Cambridgeshire.
89, 81. Philip Paris, Esq.,* Linton, ditto.
40, 82. Richard Cromwell, Knt., Hinchingbrook Castle, Huntingdonshire.
41, 83. Oliver Leder, Great Staughton, ditto.
43, 34. Edw. North,Knt.,(afterwards Lord North) Catlidge, Cambridgeshire,
43, 35. Robert Apreece, Esq., Washingley-House, Huntingdonshire,
44, 86. Thomas Ellyott, Knt., Carlton, Cambridgeshire.
45, 87. Giles Allington, Knt., Horseheath, ditto.
46, 88. Laurence Taylard, Knt., Doddington, Cambridg eshire.

Reign of Edward VI.
47} 1. Thomas Cotton, Esq., Connington, Cambridgeshire.

48, 2. John Huddleston, Sawston, ditto,

49, 8. John Cotton, Esq., Landwade, ditto.

50, 4. Thomas Bolles, Esq., Wallington, Hertfordshire.
51, 5. John Cutts, Knt., York.

52, 6. Giles Allington, Knt., Horseheath, Cambridgeshire.

Reign of Queen Elizabeth.
99, 41. Giles Allington, Esq.,* Horseheath, Cambridgeshire.
1600, 42. William Hinde, Esq,, Madingley, ditto.
1, 48, John Cutts, Knt., ditto.
?, 44, Thomas Wendy, Esq., Haslingfield, ditto.

Reign of Queen Anne.
1701, 1. Edward Nightingale, Esq., Kneesworth, Cambridgeshire.
2, 2. Roger Jenyns, Kat., Ely, Isle of Ely.
1708, 3. Francis Tyffen, Fsq., Offord-Dacey, Huntingdonshire.
4. 4. John Bromley, Esq., Horseheath, Cambridgeshire.



HORSEHEATH isa village aud jarish, ahont & miles
Fvom Chesterford station on_the Great Eastern Railway, 3
{vrom Linton, 5 from Haverhill, and 14 from Cambridge, in
the huudred of Chilford, union of Linton, county court in-
{rict of Safiron Walden, rural deanery of Cawps, avel-
denconry of Sudbury aud diccese of Ely; it is plcasamlf
situated on the Cambridge old road. The chureh of All
Snints is an anelent edifice, with equare tower, ht which are
3 bells: the interior consists of nave, sideaisle, and chancel ;
there ave also north and south porches: it contains & very
ancient brass, sup to be that of Sir Philip De Argen-
tine. The Jiving Is o rectory, annual value £400, in the
gift of the Governors of the Charterhouse, London ; the

JESS— -

t

he mbent,
of Stanlake Ricketts Batsen, Esg
the prineipal landed proprietor),
west. The population in 1861 was 497 ;

rspdio

HORSEHEBATH (IRLEN is one mile south.
Parish Clork, Willinm Howers.

—

Letters through Cambridge, vid Linton.

maney order office

CarriEr.—Edward Cole, to Audley End station, every

is at Linton

tuesday, thursday & saturday

nhe, 5.4, of Pemhroke Unlliae, O
mith Ladge, the restdenes
5.1, {lord of the manorand
is o mile nud a quarter
the ncrenge is 1,801

Batson 'b‘tm—:la-.l_a-e Ricketts, esq. 3.1, | Hymus John, beer retailer

Hurseheath lodge
COMMEBRCIAL,
Cole Bdward, buteher & earrier

Kettle John, tailor

* Hymus William, miller

, Lagdon Edward, Meniford drms

Cooke Grinvwood, farmer, Park farm iMueks George, wheelwright
r

Cornwell David, shopkeeper
BEly Riehard, shopkeeper

| Parmnmen: Janc (Mra.), shopkeeper
: Pamment Thomas, farmer

Paxton John, Red Lion

Pearl Henry, farmer
Purkis William, farmer

Simkin Thomas, blacksmith

Swith Samnel, farmer
Webhb John, farmer

Human
Human

taxes
Human
Human
King W
Moore J
Moore J
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Cow Jnmes, pard po

Flwoned .[nf-‘c-!)l: e oretatier

Fiak Chiles, b il -

Fink \V}‘Hiﬂ!u‘ by 1§

Prenc Fobn, veviotnyy oo birtho
nad marriges

Gardner Ambrose, e

[ .
1 for, wned un & Miker
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HORNINGSEA
Is a parish and smal] village in the hundred of e
NNE from Cambridge.  T'he chirel Of 51 Poter ix an ol stone by
ing i the Gothie style of architecture, "I lUving is o PUrpelnn crpa,e
In the gift of the Master and Fellows o S Joehin's Colloge, € byl
Here is 2 schoot for boys aned aivls. Thi apes o e parish is 12 ey
and the pepmlation in 1861 wig A2 The L ,
Letters throngl Camridye.

Abbott Misses l Sandery Mra
Calvert Rev. Arthur

o bathe

e, ,
e s binnh !

.y N . i :
Wiy Juhn, vsrbenter, Lyl L.

naish, about 33 mites

WL e Ve,

TRADES AND PROFESSIONS,
Adaon John, master of National schol
Bangard Thomas, farmer
Banyard William, farmer
Bendall E., beer retailer
Ficon William, farmer
Flsteher Jobu, surgeon
Hayhow Charles, Punch Bow! ing

o Holes William, innkeepe
RKetwptun Johy, wheelwripht
Sargent Urinh carpenter
Sannders Charles, Tarer
Saunders Mrs, farmer, &g,
Wilken E., Chequers inn

I8 a small village and parish abont ® miles from Chesterton “adion,
14 from Cambridge, in the hundred of Chilford, The clurel of o
Baints is an ancient edifice with tower. The living is a rectory, annos.!
value £400, in the gift of the Governors of the Charter ouse, Londou.
The parish contains 1,877 acres, and the population in 1861 was 497,
Letters through Cambridge.
Batson Stanluke, Bsg., Horsehoath lodge

TRADES AND PROFESSIONS,

Dles James, butcher Makes G., wheelwright
Cooke Grimwood, farmer, Park farm Parurment J., shopkeepor
Cornwell David, shopkeoper Pear! Honry, farmer

Ely Richard, stiopkeeper
Ditoh Jobn, shopkeeper
Hammond James, carrier
Himes W., miller

Himus Jobn, beer ratailer
Keottle Fohn, tailor

Purkiss Willinm, farmer
Simkin Thowas, blacksmith
Smith Jemes, farmer

Webb John, farmer
Willings John, farmer

ICKLETON,

A villago and parish on the borders of Essex. The church of St. Mary
is a large stone building. The living is a vicarage worth £85 per Fear,
The villageis 49 miles from London, and 11 south from Cambridge, and
13 from the Ohesterford station. The Hon. Mrs., Algernon Herbert
holds the manor. The parish contains 2672 acres. The pepulativn in
1861 was 721. _
Lotters arrive from Saffron Walden at 90 a.m. and are dispatched
al 60 p.m.
Clayton Rev. W, John, B.A.
Hailea Mr. John David, Druid vitla

TRADES AND PROTESSIONS.
Ashby Thowmas, blacksmith Jonag Samuel, farmer
Beales Samuel, farmer Knott Mary, baker

{ Herbert Hon. Mys, Algernon

Ceal Alfred, grocer and draper Lofts John, master of Independent sehogl
Edwards Thomas, butcher Mean Edward, shoemaker

Eilia Joseph, Red T.ion, and buteler

Mumford Willjam, shoemaker
Elliz John, bricklayer

Norden Henrr, blacksmith

Godfvey Willian, wheelwright, Philpot Ann, Duke of Wellington
Gosling James, farmer Porter Joseph, farmer, &e.
Gurnor Mary, shopkeeper Priest Robert, shoplerper

Hanchott Willinm, farmer

Haydon Joseph, farmer

Heydon Willism, furmer

Hill Richard, jun., furmer and miller

Richardson Marp Ang, shopkeaper

Ripsher Alfred, saddlor and harness maker
Rudiand John, Greylonnd
Soole Ann, carpenter

Hill Richard, sen,, firmer S‘picer Joln, butcisor
Hopwood Emily, deapor Walshaw Wi, Hammond, tailer
Hopwaod Richard, relieving officer Wilson Stephon, farmer

Houghton Daniel, shoemaker

Wisby Jaseph, mitler, Tower mill
Howey Thomas, furmer .

IMPINGTON -

1s o swall village and parish 24 miles N, of Cambridgestation, and g0 from
London, The church is an ancient little Qothic building. The living is
a discharged vicarage, annual value £140, in the gift of e Deun and
Chapter of Ely. Here stands an ancient mansion, frequent] ¥ referred to

in Pepys’ Diary, and built by a member of that family ; it was some years

e o,

[
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Hived until 1
erected Dy s
soil is red lo:
C. T. Coffir
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Letters an

Aunstead David
1a

Batterson  Ept

owner, Woo
Freneh Folm, §,
Hunt, William,

Is a village o
market 8 il
in the Decors
the gift of (1.
and two  acr
two to the B
population in

Letters ree
Cantlow Ilev. v
Rehing Grorgoe

Alderton ITenry
Audug Josepl,
Avey William, ;
Buagworth 1)
seligel
Bonnet va‘go,
Brown Ehoucz,
Hrown Jimes, |
Brown Josepi,
Brown Thomas
farmer
Brown Dinvid, fa
Brown Joseph,
Brown Goorge,
Boyea Robert, 1,
Chupman Johy
lm['umm Fhow
Curtis W. I, g
ivor John, my
Iver B, shoom
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G5 ORSETIEATH. [CAIQLR‘DG.E]

HORSEZEATH is a ~villsae
sutuated on the Cambridee obd rond,
Lintur staion of the b-»m Hastam
Heverhill, and 14 sonih-zpet from Camd
ot Chilifurd, union of L z.;:;u:ﬂ., coinnty oo
Wallen, rural dennery of Camps, archeeazont
and divcese of Ely.  The elurah of Al
cidifice, with squure tower, in whiel nre 5 bella s 10 cons
of charncel, nnve, aisle, and north and goath Imrclhs
cumuins & very anclent bras:, _up,m:cf.% o be that o

?hc!u'h.‘- ]J«lf\[lll, van.. are lnulq of rh" Ao .n-:l ;)“mr

Fundfowaers, The soif iz elay; subsoil, chulk., The chief <‘n

are whont, onts and Lar Eev Phe area ia 1 S48 aer

able valug, £2,776 0s. §d; the popilation in 1871 was a”:‘].

Nexéon, 0 cnrfrb Pouller,

1L L'mnwi are {woe moguments,
Alinetan, waster of the
. Heney '\ 1L, b, 15 , nul his wife and
CI‘ dnted irom L your 1358, Phe liviog is
& pentory, bt L4, fa the wit of the Governurs of
(LTS (,im"z-r‘uw . .,mjdm: wial hehil il\' tiwe Rev. James Joseph
’ .\1\ rton Cunyoghanse, I vop of 35 Jolnes Collure, Oxvord,
[lare 33 a plaen of wars ship tor the Priwirive \thim(h ts,
The elarities are 425 yonrly vabie, iurall-‘r*imt'nn paetly in
Cbrend, the rest in mush.  Horss he’nil Lo is tl:e seat of

y Lettera thrangh Canbridee, vid Linten, arrive at 8.40 aan,
The nearest money order office iy at Lintea. Yillar letter
box eleared at 5,20 pon. weele days only

" Churek School, Miss Laura Wells, misiress

y CARRIER To Carrpringe.~Bdward Cole, suturday

l'_J :mnc‘-
2, L}I»- Yo

Bateony Fdwund ' grocer & drapey ¢ Parsans Christopher. farmer
Tirewis {ieorge Win, Tlareeh .u.h lcdg ¢ Hammond Cimries. poor rate coilector | Purkis Wiiliam, farmer
Hrinkley Thomus, Wents ] s Willinon, miller | Roope Lewis, boot & shoz sapker
Buutine Joln, wroger ¢ ‘if’“l‘” P lsenhe Johu, Tor i Simkin Thes, blacksmith & wheelwright
Cols Lilward, benp vetailer Ling DIvane, Teeed Linn Webh John, farwer

Pamment Thowss, corn dealer | Woollard Jamues, blacksmith

Caeks Grimwood, fanner, Park farm
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[posT oFFICE

Rook Charles, farmep.= i .. ..

tmer . Baunders Williany,
yfarmer & butcher

k- p,’beer_ retailer

Papworth Sarah (Miss), Bell -| 8tead Edward John

Pegg John, market gardener

n Stead George, farmer
Rook Bridget (Mrs.), Boot, & butcher | Stead Thomas, market gardener

Saunders Wllliam,,tﬂleving,‘étﬁm
yrth-Phili SharpPheebe (Mrs.), Green Hill ¥
Papworth Robert, wheelwright Stead Alfred, farmer

K3
VT A er
, market gardener & s brick mas
Youngman John William; shopkeeper
& beer retailer ARG AL

HORNINGSEA (or HOoRNINGSEY) is a parish and
village 3} miles north-north-east from Cambridge, on the
eaat%ank of the river Cam, in the hundred of Flendish,
union of Chesterton, Cambridge county coirt district, rural
deanery of Cambr!dﬁe and archdeaconry and diocese of Ely.
The church of 8t. Peter is an old Gothic stone building,
consisting of chancel, nave, aisles and a tower in which are
3 bells. EI‘he register dates from the year 1628. The living
is a vicarage, in the gift of St. John's College, Cambridge,
and held by the Rev. David Lawplugh .. of that college.
Rev. A. Haviland, who is lord of the manor, Messrs. Saun-

ders Brothers, King’s and St. John’s Colleges, and Mr. Wil-

Fison William

Lamplugh Rev. David .. [viear]
Saunders John, High hall

Banyard William, farmer

Fison Samuel, farmer

liam Fison, are the principal landowners. The soil is clayey ;
subseil, gault. The chief crops are wheat, barley and
oats. The area is 1,580 acres; rateable value, £4,428 ; and
the population in 1871 was 433,

CrLay HITHE is in this parish.

Parish Clerk, James Gotobed,

Letters through Cambridge, vi¢ Fulbourn, arrive at 8 a.m. :
dispatched at 5.30 p.m.  Cambridge is the nearest money
order office %

National Sehool, Miss Caroline Smith, mistress

Gibson Henry, Crown § Punch Bowl | Saunders Brothers & Co. eoprolite mers
Hayles Tsaac, shoe maker ; .
Kimpton William, wheelwright
Manning Isaac, beer retailer
Sargent Uriah, carpenter

Saunders Charles, farmer 25
Seunders Ebenezer, farmer, Clay Hithe
Turner Frederick, heer retailer

Watts William, shopkeeper

HORSEHEATH is a village and parish, pleasantly
situated on the Cambridge old road, 3 miles north-east from
Bartlow, 3 east from the Linton station of the Great Eastern
railway, 4 west from Haverhilland 14 south-east from Cam-
bridge, in the hundred of Chilford, union of Linton, county
court district of Saffron Walden, rural deanery of South
Camps and archdeaconry and diocese of Ely. The chureh
of All Saints is an ancient edifice, with square tower, in

which are 3 bells: it consists of chancel, nave and north |5

porch: iteontains a very ancient brass, supposed to be that
of Sir Philip De Argentine : in the chancel are two monu-
ments, with effigies of Sir Giles Alington knt. master of the
Ordnance, femp, Henry VIIIL. ob. 1522, and his wife and
son. The register dates from the year 1558. The living is
a y yearly value £400, in the gift of the Governors of
the Charterhouse, London, and held by the Rev.James Joseph
Myrton Cunynghame acia. of St. John's College, Oxford.

Here is a place of worship for the Primitive Methodists.
The charities are £25 yearly value, for distribution, partly in
bread, the rest in money. Horseheath Lodge is the residence
of William George Craven esq. The trustees of the late
Stanlake Ricketts Batson esq. are lords of the manor and
principal landowners. The soil is clay ; subsoil, chalk. The
chief crops are wheat, oats and barley. The area is 1,849
g.gges ; rateablevalue, £2,796; the population in 1871 was

Sexton, George Poulter.

Pc;_sr Ocpmlgmé—nDav.;idL?ot?we]].B;;bceiveg. Iét;:tertse :ﬁx_g;:ive
rom Cambridge vid Linton, at8.80 g.m..; spatched at
‘l‘égriiyhiolﬁ?; is

5.20 p.m. Thenearest money order &
at Linlon . , St g
Church School, Miss Mary E,ll_is,_mixt::essl SIS
CARRIER TO CAMBRIDGE.—Edward Cole, satusday

Craven William Geo. Horseheath lodge | Cornwell David, grocer & draper © | Parsons Chriétopheij_fm )
Cunynghame Rev. James Joseph Myr- | Cornwell James, assistant overseer " " Purkis ‘William, farmer ™ -

-ton M. A. [rector Hammond Charles,

Kettle John, tailor

Carter hili‘f, beer retaifer
Cole Edward, beer retailer

Ling Isaac, Red Lion

assessor of taxes Rooige Lewis; boot & shoe maker
in

Webb John, farmer - *
Willings James, farmer
Woollard James, farmer

Brinkley Thomas, Montford Arms J! Hymus William, miller & farmer -Sim! Thos;‘black,hhilth'&‘_v!heelwr!gjht

Cooke Grimwood, farmer, Park farm | Ling Merey ( Miss),

shopkeeper

ICELETON is a parish on the borders of Essex, 49
miles from London, 11 south from Cambridge, 6 south-west
from Linton, 5 north from Saffron Walden and a mile and
a half north from the Chesterfield station of the Great
Eastern railway, in the hundred of Whittlesford, union of
Linton, county court district of Saffron Walden, rural
deanery of South Camps and archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely. The church of St. Mary is a large stone building, in
the Early Norman style, some portions being, however, of
alater date: it has chancel, nave, north aisle and porch, and
square centre tower with a very fine peal of G bells and
clock and a lofty spire: there is a stained memorial
window to the Hon. Algernon Herbert in the north aisle :
there are also some old frescoes on the wall, much obscured
by time : the arches supporting the nave are much admired,
and are supposed to be of Saxon origin. The register dates
from the year 1558. The living is a vicarage, yearly value
£85, in the gift of the Lord Chancellor and "held by the
Rev. John Amps M.A. of Emmanuel College, Cambridge.
Here are a Congregational and a Primitive Methodist, cha-
pel. The town lands and houses produce £68 yeatly, which
is distributed in fuel and clothing. Martin’s Chari ty of £2 6.
and Swan's, of £1 4s. yearly, are also distribnted. Aubrey
da Vere, first Earl of Oxford, or his father-in-law, Sir

Hmps Rev. John n.a. [vicar]
Beales Samuel

Briggs George

Francis Mrs

Burton Job, farmer

1 COMMERCIAL, :
Barker William, miller Gurner Thomas, wateh maker
Beales Samuel, farmer

William de Cantelupe knt. founded a Benedictine nunnery
here and dedicated it to St. Mary Mi;gdalene; the Prioress
had a grant from King Henry III. of a weekly market.and
an annual fair, abolished in 1875 : the remains of the priory,
now converted into a farm-house, have a very ancient
aspect, the walls being 3 feet thick: several stone: coffins
have been dug up here: it is on the estate of William Parker

Hamond esq. Robert George Wyndham Herbert, who holds

the manor, Lieut.-General Inflis, Lady Lewellyn, William

Parker Hamond esq. 5.P. and Clare and "I‘rinit{ Colleges,

Cambridge, are the principal landowners. The soil is chalky;

subsoil, chalk, The chief crops are wheat and barley. The

area is 2,672 acres ; rateable value, £4,808; the population

in 1871 was 677.

Parish Clerk, Thomas Soole.

PosT Orrrce.—Thomas Soole, postmaster. Letters arrive
from Saffron Walden at 7.45 & 10.15 2.m. ; dispatched at
10.50 a.m. & 6.40 p.m.’; on sundays at 11 a.m. ‘The
nearest money order office is at Great Chesterford ’

ScHooLs :— : e A

Chureh, William James Carver, master
British, Albert Chacksfield, master. - e
CARRIER TO CAMBRIDGE.—Mrs.' Mary Hunt, tues. & sat

Griggs,wmlmp,»bntéher

Hayden Joseph, farmer
H opwobﬂ%'Buﬁlf-(Miss), draper

Herbert Robert George Wyndham J.p | Clark William, beer retailer ; Hunt Mary sMrs.), carrier

Howey Mrs
Jonas George
Pilgrim Mrs
Preedy Mrs
Wilson Mrs

Course Humphrey, shoe maker Inker M
Flack James, Dike of Wellington Jonas B
Gillson George, shopkeeper
| GodfreyWm.agricultural implement ma |- Mumford William, shoe maker
Gosling James, farmer

Mrs. ), shopkeaper
. farmér,.cgrixhgeﬂ- grange

Jonas George, farmer

'Nphjel'_l'llomas, cattle dealer

! “t'im, with!

e corg'reg%
8rd, 1850, in th
<hapel for the I
is & National s
ties amount to ;
ﬂi‘-hool,, clathing

mshous:s, fou
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Lee Suhn, Red Lion

Leet Richard, florist

Lueas Smith, market gardener
Moore Berjumin, market gardener
Mnoore Junes, shopkeeper
Muney Richard, farmer

Navean Charlotte & Son, grocers
QOrpen Williaw, shopkeeper
Osborn Thomas, farmer

Papworik Charles, farmer & butcher
Papworih Prederick, Dacksmith

Papworth Plilip, beer rvaiailer
Papwerth Richawrd, Boot inn
Papworth- Robert, wheelvwright
Papworth Sarah (iss), Beil
Pauley Mary {Mrs.), favimer
Pege Johin, market gurdener
Rook Cliarles, furmer
Saunders Witiam, relieving oflicer for | Tolliday Jolin, blacksmith & post master
Futhourn district, Chesterton union
Sharp Pheebe (dMrs.), Green Hill
Stead Alfred, farmer .

KoLy s

M e

ICKLETON.

Stead Edward Jobn, market gardener
Stead George, farmer

Stead Thomas, market gardener
Stearn Charles, Rose § Crown
Symonds Peter, cattle dealer & farmet
Todd Edward, carpenter

Todd James, farmer

Willson Charles, builder & contractor
Youngman John William, shopkeepor
& beer retailer

HORNINGSEA (or HORNINGSEY) is a parish and
villwge 33 miles northenortii-east from Cambrilge, on the
east bauk of 1he river Cam, in the hundred of Flendish,
union of Chesterton, Cambridee county ceurt diswrict, rural
deanery of Cnwbridge snd archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely. The church of St. Peter is a Gothic stone building,
consistinw of chancel, nave, nisles and ¢ tower in which are
3 belta:r it was thoroughly restored and reopened at Chrlst-
mas, 1863, at & cost of over £1,000, the chancel at the
expense of St, John's Callege, and the nave by subseriptions
from parishioners and friends. The register dates from the
year 1628. The living is n vicarage, yearly value £200, in
the gift of St, John's College, Cambridge, and held by the
Rev. Alfred Caldecott ar.a. formerly fellow of that college.
The Rev. A, Haviland, who is lerd of the manor, Messrs.
Sunmiers Brothers, King’s and $t. Jolin’s Colleges, H.
Norris esg. and Mr, Willium Fison, sre the principal land-

Caldeentt Rev, Alfred nr.4. [viear]
Fison William
COMMERCIAL.

Gibson Henry, beer retailer
Hayles Isane, shoe maker
Kimpton Wiiliam, wheelwright

owners. Coprolites are dug here to o considerable extent,
The parish enjoys one of the fens in Bottisham jointly with
the inhabitants of that parish; also another fen situated in
Quy and Horningsea. The poor lands produce £6 per
ananum. The soil is clayey ; subsoil, ganit. The chief erops
are wheat, harley and oats.” The area is 1,580 acres; rate-
able vatue, £4,113; and the population in 1881 was 409,

Cray HITHE is in this parish.

Parish Clerk, William Banyard.

Deprty Clerk, James Gotobed.

Letters through Cambridge, vid Fulbourn, arrive at 8 a.m, ;
dispatched at 530 p.m. Waterbeach is the nearest money
order & telegraph office

National School, will hold 250 clildren ; Miss Caroline
Hamnith, mistress

Sargent Urial, carpenter & shopkeoper
Sargent Mouris, carpenter
Saunders Brothers & Co. coprolite mers

Banyard William, farmer & coprolile | Lawes’ Chemical Manure Co. Lim. | Saunders Charles, fartner

raiser
Crucknell George, beer relailer
Fison Suwuel, farmer

coprolite merchants
Robinson William, market gardener
Rebinson Willimo, jun, shoe waker

Saunders Isarc Ebenezer, farmer, Clay

Hitlie
Watts William, shopkeeper

HORESEHEATH, is a village and parish, pleasantly
sitnated on the Cambridge old ruad, 3 miles north-east from
Bartlow, 4 east froem the Linton station of the Great Eastern
railway, 4 west from Haverhill and 14 south-east Jrom Cuam-
bridge, in the hundred of Chilferd, union of Lintoa, county
court district of Haverhill, rural deanery of Cawnps (second
division} and archileaconry and diocese of Ely, The chareh
of All Saints is an aneient editice of flint and rubble, in the
fourteenth and fifteenth century styles : it consists of chancel
with an old sereeq, nave and south porch, with square tower
in which are 3 hells : it contains a very ancient brass, sup-
posed to be that of Sir Philip De Argentine: in the chancel
are three monuments ; the two on the south side have effiries
of Sir Giles Alington knt. master of the Ordnance, fomp.
Henry VIII. 0b. 1322, and his son Sir Gyles, both ¢lad in

armour ; the monument on the north side has efiigies-of-Sir-

Giles (1613) and his wife Dorothy and {heir issue of ten
children in figures surrounding the monument; also a tablet
to the memory of Lovd Montfort, Baron of Horseheath,
a title now extinet. ‘The register dates from the year 1358,
The living is a rectory, net yenrly value £360, in the gifc of
the Gavernors of the éllarterhouse, London, and held since
1875 by the Rev, James Joseph Myrton Cuvnynghame n.aA.
of 3t. John’s College, Oxford. Here is a place of worship

for the Primitive Methodists, 'The charities are £35 yearly
value, for distribution in money. Horseheath Hall, a mag-
nificenct measion, wns erected here in 1665 by Lord Alington,
and about a century later, this splendid building was sold
for the value of the materials; the foundations of the cellars
enly now rewmain : the park, which consisted of above 870
aeres, has been disparked, and the egtate was purchased a
century since by Stanlake Batson esq. Horseheath Lodge
is a white brick maunsion in the Elizabethan style, sitnated
2 miles east of the village ; it is the property of the trustees
of the late Stanlake Ricketts Batson esy. and the residence
of William George Craven esq. J.p. The trustees of the
lute 8. . Batson ara lords of the manor and principal land-
awners. The soil is clay ; subsoil, chalk. The chief erops are
wheat, oats and barley, The area is 1,840 acres; rateable

-value, £2,511; the population in 1881 was 545,

Nexfon, George Poulter.

PosT OFrICE.~Edwin Frederiek Cornmwell, receiver. Let-
ters arrive from Cambridge vid Linton at 8,30 a.m, ; dis-
patched at 5.20 p.m. week days only. The nearest money
order & telegraph office is at Linton

Church School, Miss Mery Eilis, mistress

CARRIER TO CAMBRIDGE.—Edward Cole, saturday

Craven William Geo. Horseheath lodge | Cooke Grimwoed, farmer, Park, Lim~ | Ling Isnac, Red Lion

Cooke Grimwoeed, Park
Cunvnghame Rev. James Joseph Myr-
ton .4, [rector]
COMMERCGIAL.
Betts Christopher, cattle dealer
Brinkley Ttowas, Montford drms
Cole Edward, earrier

Camps
post otfice

Kettle John, tailor

Hyrmus Win. miller (wind} & farmer

Kiddy George, beer retailer

berhurst & Church farms & at Shudy | Ling Mercy (Miss), shopkeeper

Parsons Chistopher, farmer

Cornwell Edwin Frederick, grocer, & | Pask Elijah, beer retajier

Parkis William, jun. farmer
R.uope Lewis, bout & shoe maker
Simkin Chas. blacksmith & wheelwrizht

ICKLETON is a parish on the borders of Lssex, 11
wiles south from Cambridge, 6 south-west from Linwon, 5
north from Saffron Walden and a mile and a half north from
the Great Chesterford station of the Great Bastern railway,
in the hundred of Whittlesford, union of Linton, county
court district of Saffron Walden, ruval deanery of Camps
second division and arelideaconry and diocese of Ely., Thke
churel of St. Mary is & large stone building, in the Early
Norman style, some portions being, however, of a later
date: it kas chancel, nave, north aisle and porch, and square
central tower with a very fine peal of 6 bells, clock and
a lofty spire: the chancel has been eatirely rebaiit by the
‘Eeelesiastical Commissioners ; the work was connmenced in

© May, 1882, and completed in Januvary, 1883 : there is a

stuined mewnorial window to the Hon, Algernon Herbert in
the novthaisle ; there are also some old frescoes on the wall,
youchi elseured by time: the archessupporting the nave are
much admired, and are supposed to be Saxon,  TFhe register
dates from the year 1558. The living is a vicarage, yearly
’value £118 with residence, in the gifc of the Loml Chan-

Emmanuel College, Cambridge. Hereisa building belonging
to the Congregationalists used for service on Sundays and as
a school room during the week, The Primitive Methodists
have o chapel. The town lands and eottages produce £148
yeorly, whieh is distributed in fuel and clothing, excepting
& sraall portion which is given to the school fund. Martin's
Charity of £2 6. and Swan’s, of £1 4s. vearly, are also dis-
tributed. Aubrey de Vere, fizst Eari of Oxford, or his
futher-in-law, Sir William De Cantelupe knt. founded -a
Benedietine nunnery here and dedicated it te St, Mary Mag-
dalene; the Prioress had a grantfrom King Henry IIL of a
weekly market and an ananal fair, abolished in 1875+ the
remains of the priory, now converted into a farm-house,
have a very ancient aspect, the walls being 3 feet thick :
several stone coffins have been dug up bere: it is on the
estate of Wiiliam Parker Hamond esy. D.%., 5.2, Here arc
three manors, belonging respectively to Sir Robert George
Wyndham Herbert D.L., 3.p., X.C.B. and Clare and Trinity
Colleges; the owners of the manors with William Parker
Hamond esq. 0.L., J.2. the Ecclesiastical Commissioners

1 eellor and held since 1864 by the Rev, John Awmps si.a. of vand General William Inglis c.B,, I.P. are the prineipal

CNGB
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HORSEHEATH is » villags, and parish, . plessantly
situated on the ,Cambrigg'e ,quf:md.za,milﬁ-gnrthmy
{’fqm B:!;%og. ;mt %r:;n ;m;.imqun rof ;hho Gam-
ridge and Sug Aine.of $he Great;Kastern Failwa;
mﬁfm& A “'ﬁ-‘* ‘ orin
SAIVISI0n  0f {44

S

south porch and an embattled western tower containing 3
bells : in the chancel is & brass. sad .fo commemorate
Sir John de Argentine, 0b, x382,; the canop, and ingeription
are lost : on the sonth eide of the changel ;are monuments
with.effigies..to Sir Gil Jnty, {

. Exsiaia, diisto-ot 8 fom (oo Bednances, tenp, Henry, VILLgb, 18536, 39 Bis gou, Gyles,
£ J By ds of Jran . temp, Hen LL.{ 0 J35904 2D/ 0, Xy
Siscch . Havaxhilxorale euntey B ompec-samd | vithoMete b B o nElCP i St
of All Saints is an.ancient,ed -ue'aiﬁt-;.w{hb la, n:ths { xuents théré-ﬂjdmnﬁmmmv the Bromle
thic style of the xsth cantury, consisting of.chancel, nave, | Mantfort. of Harsehesth, a title which bacaneexti
death '6f Henty (Bromley), ard baron, April 30, r851: a foundations now’ remain’s. the park, which~ consisted "of
i above 870 ncres, has' been disparked, and the estats was

brass -with mutilated efligy to Robert, son of Sir Giles
‘ mn, 0b.°1553, and Margaret (Coningsbis his wife,and
bragses to Joan A n, sisfer and heir of John

7o ithe church wias
0l {400, and now affords
tam frond the year - 1558,
: Mﬂh‘fﬁe £330, net: yearly. vaina {57,
! o6 and including 12 acres of glebe, in the.gift of
‘the'Gbyernors'of the Charterhouse, Lonsoﬂ,‘n_pd held aince
‘s88¢ by ‘the Rey. Charles Alexander Borrer B.A. of. i
Chprgh; Oxford. Here is a Primitive Methodist chapel.
The'¢harities amount to £25 yearly, and are distributed in
money. Horseheath Hall, a magnificent mansion, erected

ra3g and to Cheyne); ' wifs ‘of "John.
1439 ry (Cheyne) wite ot |8

rds 190 sitsingdisThe | 1af
'Ehe. liying isAgectdry, | crops

hers in 1665 by William, Baron Alington, was sold about a
century later for the value of the materials, and only the

Batson Stanlake Hy. Horseheath lodge
BorrerRev.Chas. Alexander B.a, Rectory
Cooke Grimwood, Park

COMMERCIAL.
Atherton Charles, beer retailer
Bridge&Bon,drapers&grocers,Postoffice  Ling Mary (Miss),
Buatcher Walter & Charles, farmers Neal Frederick,
Cole Edward, baker & carrier

Kettle Allen, tailor

Cooke Grimwood, farmer, Park farm
Howard William, {farmer
Hywmus William, miller (wind) & larmer

Ling Isaac, Red Lion P.H

shopkeeper
gamekeeper to Col. | Thompson John H. baer retailer -
George A. F. Sulivan e

purchased'a- b{entaf;rf since by Stanlake ‘Batson esq. Horse-

heath Todpe; a"iiiansion ‘of ‘white: bricktin"ihie Elizabathan
i villages, S {liaEtopartyof &

ord | ‘ﬂ‘ﬁ' ¥

; Rabt Bl |

7 ,'Giéo oirlter. i
Post" OppicE.*~Arthup H idge;” retel Latters
arrive ' from Cambridge vil' Linton at 8.3¢° &ingi s dis-
patched at 540 p.m. ‘week daysonly. Thenearest pioney
order & telegraph‘office is at Linton v
Church School (mixed), erected in 1878, for 100 children ;
average attendance; 70 ; Miss Mary Ellis, migtress
CARRIER T0 CaMBRIDGE.—Edward Cole, saturday

Nunn John, Montford Arms P.E
Parsons Christopher, farmer

Parsons Thos. Wayman,frmr.Chareh fn
Purkis Thomas, farmer

Roope Lewis, boot & shoe maker
Simkin Chas.blacksmith & wheelwright

]




HOBSEHEA lags, & pnmh, phnamf.ly
stanted; o thia’ Gambndge old rond,. 3- iniles north:east
from. Bartlow,: 4 east. fram: the:Linton station. of: tha Cam-
bridge: and Sudbury. lina of; the Grent: Hustorn. railway;. 4.
west from: H; vorhill nd 3. south- Ll Cambrxd;];o. in
; End o; cotnty, hundred of: Ghilford,:
nd ‘unign.of Liaton, connt.y COiLL
£Q i, second,

petty: sedsional divisio
district; of - Haverhill,’, rural™ deanp

nd dinceza of Bly.:
of All Emnta ig anarncient edxﬁce uf b, &

chry (Bromlcy), “edd baron, “April-'49, - ;85! 4
: i “ mutilated s ofligy .- to Robert,: son 0! Sir Glles
* - Alington, eb. 1533, and Margaret’ (Uomugﬂbxe hisiwife, and:
ms(.nbed biasses-to Joan” A!yngmn, sister, and beir of John

o - Argentein, ob. 1420 andito Mary(Chicyne), " wife' of; Johit.
- Alyington; eirea: 1470 = thia chtiveh wasrestored and’ raseatad:
i1891; at a cost of fi400; and nowaffords 1g0 51ttmgs 'The

- registor dutes from the’ year x558: : The living is & rectory,

. average tithe rent:chargs 4320, net 3uar1y value: £237,
" with residencs and including 22 ncres of glebe, in the gilf of

_ tha Governors of the Charterhouse, London, and: held since
“188% by the Rev. G!mrles Alexander Borrer B.A. of Chivist
‘Charch, Oxford.: Here is a Primitive Metlhodist ulmpoi

. The chantws athount to £z25 yearly, and are diatributed in
muney Horseheath Hall, a magoificent roansion, erected
hers in 1665 by Williani, Barou Alington, was dold aboit a
century later for the’ value of the' materials;, and only the

. Batson Stanlake Hy. Horscheath Todgs | Cooke Grimwood, farmer; Park farm
BorrerRev.Chas. Alexinder 1.4 Rectery -Hownrd Witlidm, fermer -

Cooka (:rnnwood Park

: T COMMURGEAL, ‘Kettla' Allen; tailor
Atherton Chm-ies, bear retailer
Butcher Walter & Chbarles; farnvers’
Cole Edward, baker & mrner

':south po ol h aasl -y

‘L and their ten, ch:ldrcn, it

GAMBRIDGL‘SHIRE

Posr Oprroe,—Arthar Henry Bridge, receiver::

ng Tsnac; Red Lion px- -
BritlgodBon,draperskgrocars, Postoffice Ling Mary: (¥iss); shopkeeper :
: ‘\Een Froderick, gnmekeeper m CUI l‘hampson Jnh.u B baer retmlcr
GrcorgeA F Suhvau

halla:: in the thancel 13 & bmss s posed to, comim
iopy.and inseriptica

with' g 3

.Ordnam.-c, fenip, Honry VIIL ob.: x585 anid. hiss son. Gyles,
-bath clad. i’ armour ;. snd on. the nurt.ﬁ sida 3 monument
with effigies to St Gilss Alington, obi 1673, his wife Dorag
hom sm'mund t

ne' Qf t.!m Brumlc)s, :
Ls oL tho'

mcnt there is also 5 tablet:

(kELLy's

Toutidations: now vowiaini’ the: park,” whicly: consisted of
above 870 acres, hng been disparked, and; the' estaté Wwas
piirchased a-century since by-Stanlake: Bafsonesq ‘Horse-

‘héath: Lodge, . mansion ‘of “white brick: in: thd Elizabothan

atyle, one mile gast of the village, is the proporty, of Stenlake
Henry Bataonesq “who' it lexi ‘of the manor and rmcq_xﬂ
landowner.” The doil 18’ clay; subsell;” chall ' The? chict
crops are whoat, oats'and barley: Tho arenis 1 1849 atros;
ateable value, £2,0647 the pepuintion in 189: Wwad 50
* Bexton, George Ponlter, ; :
Lettcrs

arrive’ from - Cimbridge vik Linton of 8.307a,m.y dis-
" patehed at'5.20 p.n: week daysonly. Thenca.reﬂt mouey'
order & telegraph office is ab Linton -+ -
Chureh School (mixed), erscted’ it 1873, for 100 cln!dren ;
average attendance; 70 ;° Miss Mary IiHs, mistress®
Cinpies 10 CAuBnIbGS.~~Edward (’;)le. saf:urthy

Nuan John, Montford-Arms P
Parsons Christophery (sirmer ™

Hymuna: Wlllmm, mlller(wmd) & farmer | Parsons Thos. Wayman,femr, Glmrch m

Purkig Thomag, farmer:
Roope Lewis, boot & shoe maker
Simkin Chas. blacksinith & wheelwright

/894
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HORSENEATH is a village and parish, pleasantly seated
on the Cambridge old road, 3 miles east from the Linton
station of the Cambridge snd Sudbury line of the Greab
Eastern railway, 4 west from Haverhill and 14 south-east
from Qambridge, in the Eastern division of the county,
hundred of Chilford, pebty sessional division and union of
Tinbon, connty court district of Haverhill, rural deanery of
Camps, second division, and srchdeaconry and diccese of
Ely.” The church of All Saints is an ancient edifice of fint
and rubble, in the Gothic style of the 15th cenbury, con-
sisting of chancel, nave, south porch and an embatiled
western tower containing s bells: in the chanecel is a brass
to commermorzte Sir John de Argentine, ob. 138z; the
canopy end inscription are lost: on the south side of the
chance} are monuments with effigies to Sir Giles Alingion
knt. master of the Ordnance, temp, Henry VIIL. ob. 1386,
and his sen Gyles, both clad in armour; and on the north
side 2 monument with efigies to Sir Giles Alington, ob.
1613, his wife Darothy, and their ;o children, figures of
whom surround the monumenb: there is also a tablet to
one of the Bromleys, Barens Montfort of Horseheath, a
title wwhich became extinet on the death of Henry (Brom-
ley), 3rd baron, April 30, 1851: a brass with mutilated
effigy to Robert, son of Sir Giles Alington, ob. 1552, and
Margaret (Coningsbie) his wife, and insoribed brasses to
Joan Alyngton, sister and heir of John, Argentein, ob. 1429
and to Mary (Cheyne), wite of John Alvingion, eirea 147c:
the church was restored and reseated in 1880-gx, ab a cost
of £1,000, end now affords 1go sittings. The register
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dates from the year 1558, The living is a rectory, average

tithe rent-chiarge £3c4, neb yearly value f243, with Tesi

dence and including 1z acres of %ljbe, in the gifb of the

Governors of the Charterbiouse, ndon, and held since

1885 by the Rev. Charles Alexander Borrer B.4A, of Christ

Chureh, Oxford. Here is @ Primitive Methodist chapel.

The charities arsount to sbomb fz23 yearly, and are dis-

tributed in money and bread. Horseheath Hali, » magni-

ficent mansion, erected here in 1663 by William, Baron

Alington, was sold about a century later for the value of

the materials, and only the foundations now remein: the

park, which consisted’ of above 870 acres, has been dis-
parked, and the estate was purchased a cenbury since by

Stanlake Babson esq. Horseheath Lodge, 2 mansion of

white brick in the Elizabethan style, one mile east of the

village, is the property of Stanlake Henry Batson esq. who
is lord of the maner and principal landowner. The soil is
clay; subsoil, chalk, The chief crops are wheat, oats end
barley. 'Fhe area is 1,922 acres; rateable value, £1,704;
tke population in 1891 was 507.
Sexton, (George Poulter,

Post Office—Arthur Henry Bridge, sub-postmaster.
Letters arrive from Cambridge vid Linten at 8.50 &.m.;
dispatched at 3.30 p.m, week days only. Postal orders
are issned here, but not paid. The neavest money order
& telegraph coffice is at Linton

Cliurch School {mixed), ereeted in 1875, for 100 children;
average attendance, 59; Miss Mary Ellis, mistress

Carsier to Cambridge.~~Edward Cole, saturday

Borrer Rev. Chas. Alex. B.A, Rectory |Hymus William, miller (wind),& iarmrll’arsons Thomas Wayman, farmer,

Hill George H. The Cottage
COMMERCIAL.
Atherton Charles, besr retailer

Cole Edward, baker & carrier

TICELETON is 2 parish on the borders of Essex, 11 miles
south from Cambridge, 6 south-west from Linton, 3 north
from Saffron Walden and a mile north from the Great
Chesterford station of the London and Cambridge section
of the Great Eastern railway, whick is in this parish, in
the Eastern division of the county, hundred of Whittles-
ford, wnion and petty sessional division of Linton, county
court district of Saffron Walden, tural deanery of Camps,
second division, and archdeaconry and diocese of Ely. The
church of $t. Mary is 2 large building of sfone in the Early
Norman style, some portions being, however, of a later
date: it consists of chancel, nave, aisles, south transept,
south porch, and a central tower with = lofty spire con-
taining = clock and 6 beils: the chancel was entirely re-
built by the Ecclesiastical Commissioners in 188z-3 and
retains o piscina and sedilia, and in 1883 further re-
storations were effected by Sir Robert Herbert G.C.B, and
others, the total cost amounding te £1,416: in the north
aisle is & memorial window to the Hon. Alpernon Herbert,
d. 11 June, 1855, and the walls beor some ancient frescoes,
much obscured by iime: on the jambs of the clerestory
windowa are various fizures, and the tower ceiling is also
painted : the nave arcades are supposed to be Saxon: a pary
of the rood lofb and 2 screen of Perpendicular date remain,
the under part of the rood loft being richly traceried: in
1886 & marble memorial was erected to 3t. Leger Algernon
Herbert C.M,G. war correspondent, who was kilted at Abu
Kles in the Soudan, January 17, 1883: the church affords
300 sitbings. The register dates from the year 1558. The
living is a vicarage, net yearly value 280, with residence
and including 17 acres of glebe, in the gifh of the Lord
Chancellor, and held since 1864 by the Rev. John Amps
M.A, of Emmanuel College, Combridge. Here is a Con-
gregational chapel, and a Primitive Methodist chapel built
in 1832, A Cemebery of 1 acre was formed in 1883 at & cost
of £gsoo, with a chapel, and is under the control of
the Parish Council, The town lands and cottages
produce £148 yearly, which sum, excepting a small portion

Kent Alfred, farmer, The Park

Kettle Allen, tailor

Ling Ysaac, Red Lion P.H

Bridge & Son,drapers&grocers, Post offijLing Mary (Miss), shopkeeper
Manfield Thomas, Montford Arms P.H
Howard William, farmer, Rose farm  {Parsons Christapher, farmer

Church farm

Roope Charles, boot & shoe ma. & bakr

Simkin Charles, ironmonger & general
& shoeing smith & wheelwright &
agriculbural implemsent ma. & agent

iThompson George H. beer retailer

which is given to the school fund, is distributed in fuel and

clothing. Martin’s charity of £2 6s. and Swan’s, of L1 48.

yearly, are also distributed. Here was once a Benedictine

nupnery, founded im 1190 by Anbrey de Vere, first Easl of

Oxford, or his father-in-law, Sir William de Cantelupe ket.

gnd dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene ; the prioress had a

grant from Xing Henry IIL of & weekly market and an

annual fair, sbolished in 1875 : the remains of the Priory,
now the property and residence of James Welch esq. have
walls 3 feet thiclk: several sbone coffins have been dug up
on the site. Here are three manors, belonging respectively

to Sir Robert George Wyndham Herbert G—.‘%.B., D.C.L.,

1.5, I.P. and Clare and Trinity Colleges; the lords of the

manors, with Fames Welch esq. of Ickleton Abbey farm,

the Eoclesiastical -Commissioners and Col. Charles

Tilewellyn, of London, ate the principal landowners. The

soil is light ; subsoii, chalk and gravel. The chief crops are

wheat and barley. The areais 2,700 acres ; rateable value,
£3,904; the population in 18gr was Goq. By an order
shich came into operation March 235, 1886, a detached psrt
of this pavish was amalgamated with Hinxton,

Parish Clerk, George Soole.

Tost Office.—Mrs. Susan Soole, postmistress. Letters:
arrive from Saffron Walden at 7.20 a.m. & are dispatched
at 6.40 p.m. & fren Great Chesterford S. 0. Esgex, ab
10.25 a.m, & are dispatched &t 11 4.m.; on sundays ab
ir a.m. Postal orders are issued here, bui not paid,
The nenvest money order office is ab Great Chesterford &
telegraph office ab Hinxton

Wall Lettar Box, Great Chesterford station; cleared at
9.30 a.m. & 6.50 p.m.; sandays, 1125 am .

Chareh School, erected in 187z & enlarged in 1883, & will
now kold 146 children ; average attendance, 1oo; Willam
JFames ‘Carver, master .

Great Chesterford Railway' Station

Carrier to Cambridge.—Dbrs. Mary Hunt, tues. & sab

i

Amps Rev. John M.A, Vicarage

Beales Samuel, Rose vilia

Bowen George William Howard

Brand Wiillam, Providence cottage

Francis Miss

Godfrey TFrederick James

Hayden Mrzs

Herbert Sir Robert George Wyndham
&.C.38., D.C.L, D.L, I.P

Shelford John, Vicioria cottage

COMMERCIAL.

Beales Hy.Francis,frmr.The Mowbrays

Browning Edwin Luther, grocer&drapr

Cemetery (Frederich James Godirey,
clerk)

Clark John, miller {wind}

Course Humphrey, shoe maker

Cuthbert John, farm baiiff to G. W.|Griggs William, farmer, Priory farm

H. Bowen esq.’ The Grange
Dix Absalom, beer retailer .
Flack Mary Ann (Mrs.), Duke of Wel-
lington P.H. & balker
Flack Samuel, waggonette proprietor
Fuller Charles, head gardener to Sir
%oﬁt. G. W, Herbert G.C.B.,D.C.L.,

Fuller Julia (Mrs.), dress maker

Godfrey & Sor, agricultural implement
malkers,ironmongers, builders & con-
tractors; estimates given

Godfrey Frederick J. assisbant over-
seer,vabe collector,assessor &Gcollector
of taxesiclerk to the parish councils
of Tekleton, Duxford & Hinxion

Grigas George, butcher

Gurner Thomas, watch maler

Howard William, boot maler

Hunt Mary (Mrs.), carrier

Inker Mary Ann (Mrg,), shopkeeper

Jonas George (of Duxford), farmer

Lawrence Jobn, miller (water}

Lindsell Jehn William, beer retailer

Mazrtin Henry, Red Tion P.H

Mortimer Edward, beer retailer

Mumfor@ Harriets (Mzs.}, farmer

Porter Joseph Charles, Greyhound P.H

Scales George Rbenezer, farmer, The
Vallance farm

Scole Susan(Mrs. ),carpenter,Post office

Turner John, baler

Welch James, farmer & landowner,The
Abbey farm

P s o S '_M N I L S N
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HBORSEEEATH is a village and parish, pleasantiy jdates from the year 1358. The living is a rectory, ned
saated on the Cambridge old road, 4 miles east from the | yearly value [26c0, with residence and including 1z acres

Linton station of the Cambridge and Sudbury line of the
Great Eastern railway, 4 west from Haverhill and 14
sputh-east from Cambridge, in the Eastern division of
she county, hundred of Chilford, petty sessional division
snd union of Linton, county court district of Eaverhill,
rural deanery of Camps, second division, and areh-
deaconry and diocese of Ely. The church of ANl Saints
is an ancient edifice of flint and rubble in the Gothic
style of the rsth century, consisting of chancel, nave,
sounth porch and en embattled western tower containing
4 bells: in the chancel is a brass to commemorate Sir
John de Argentine, ob, 382; the canopy and inscription
are lost: on the south side of the chancel are monuments
with effigies to Sir Giles Alington knt. master of the
Ordnance, temp. Henry VIIL ob. 1586, and his son Gyles,
both ¢lad ir armour; and on the north side a monument
with effigies to Sir Giles Alington, ob. 16:3, his wife
Porothy, and their zo children, figures of whom surround
the monument: there is also a tablet to ane of the Brom-
leys, Barons Montfort of Horseheath, a bitle which
became extinct on the death of Henry (Bromley), 3rd
baren, April 30, 1851; a brass with mutilated effigy to
Robert, son of Sir Giles Alington, ob, 1532, and Margaret
{Coningsbie) his wife, and inscribed brasses to Joan
Alyngton, sister and heir of John Argentein, ub. 142g, and
to Mary (Cheyne), wife of Jobn Alvington, eirea 1470:
3he church was restored and reseated in 188o-g9x, at & cost
of f£1,000, and now affords zgo sittings. The register
Horrer Rev. Chas, Alex, B.A, Bectory
Hill George H. The Cottage

Solari Miss, Horseheath lodge

Coviel Henry, farmer
Goldsmith Edward, beer ret. & painter!Parsons Thomas Waymen, farmer,
Howard Willilam, farmer, Rose farm :

of glebe, in the gift of the Governors of the Charterhouse,

London, and held since 1885 by the Rev. Charles Ales-

ander Borrer B.A. of Christ Church, Oxford. Here iz a

Primitive Methodist chapel. The charities amount to

about feg yeorly, and are distributed in money and

bread. ~Horseheath Hall, a magnificent mansion, erected
here in 1655 by William, Baron Alingten, was sold about

a century later for the value of the materials, and only

the foundations now remain: the park, whick consisted

of above Byo acres, has been disparked, and the estate
is now in the possession of Thomas Xnyler esq. Horse-
heath Lodge, a mansion of white brick in the Elizabethan
style, 1 mile east of the village, is the property of

Thomas Xayler esq, who is lord of fhe manor and

principal landewner, and is now the residence of Miss

Solari. The soil is elay ; subsoil, chalk. The chief crops

are wheat, oats and barley. The area is 1,022 acres;

rateable value, £7,736; the pepulation in 18gr was gop.
Sexton, Charles Bowers.

Post Offico.—John Henry Chilton, sub-postmaster.
Letters errive from Cambridge vid Linton at 8.30 2.m. ;
dispatched ab 5.30 p.m. weel days only. Pestal orders
are issued here, but not paid. The nearest money order’
& telegraph office is at Linton, 4 miles distant N

Church School (mixed), erected in 1875, for 1oo children;
average attendance, 303 Miss Mary Ellis, mistress

Garrier to Cambridge.—Edward Cole, sat

1Parsons Christepher, farmer

Clurch farm

COMMERCIAL, Hymus William, miller {wind) & farmr Rpo}}:ﬁ Charles, boot & shoe ma. & bakr
Chilton John Henry, draper & grocer, |{Kent Alfred, faimer, The Park Simkin Charles, ironmonger & general
Post Office Kattle Allen, tailor & shoeing smith & wheelwright &

Cole Edwsard, baler & carrier

Ling Harry, carpenter

agricultural implement ma. & agent

Cooper John H. Montford Avms P.H {Ling Isaac, Bed Lion I.H

TCKLETON is a parish on the borders of Essex, 11
miles south from Cambridge, 6 south-west from Lingon. 5
north from Saffron Walden and & mile north frem the
Great Chesterford station of the London and Cambridge
section of the Greai Eastern railway, which is in this
parish, in the Eastern division of the county, hundred of
Wkittlesford, union and petty sessionzl division of Lin-
fon, county court district of Saffren Welden, rural
deanery of Camps, second division, and archdeaconry
and diocese of Bly. The church of Bt. Mary is o Jarge
building of stone in the Early Norman style, some
portions being, however, of & lajer date: iF consists
of chancel, nave, aisles, south transept, south porch
and o central tower with a lofty spire containing a
clock and 6 bells: the chancel was entirely rebuilt by
the Beclesiastical Commissioners, in 1882-3, and retains
& piscina and sedilia, and in 1883 f{urther restorations
were effected by Sir Robert Herbert &.C.B. and
others, the total cost amounting o £1,416: in the north
sisle is 3 memorial window to the Hon. Algernon Herbert,
d. 11 June, 1855, and the walls bear some ancient frescoes,
much obscared by time: on the jambs of the clerestory
windows are varicus figures, and the tower ceiling is also
painted : the nave arcades are sppposed to be Saxen: a part
of the Tood loft and a screen of Perpendicular date remain,
the under part of the rood loft being richly traceried: i.

1886 a marble memorial was erected to St. Leger Algernon ;

Herbert C.M.G. war correspondent, whe was killed at Abu
Ilen in the Soudan, January 17, 1885 : the e¢hurch affords
300 sitbings. The register dates from the year 1558. 'I'he
living is a vicarage, net yearly value £280, with residence
and including 17 acres of glebe, in the giffi of the Lord
Chancelior, and held since 1864 by the Rev. John Amps
M.A. of Emmanuel Collepe, Cambridge. Here is a Oon-
gregationat ckapel, and a Primitive Methodist chapel, built
in 1852. A Cemetery of 1 acre was formed in 1883 at a cost
of f5o00, with a chapel, and is under fhe conirel of
the Parish Council. The town lands and cottages
produce £148 yearly, which sum, excepting a small portion
Amps Rev, John M. A, Vicarage
Beales Mrs. Samuel, Rose villa

COMAMERCIAL,
Beales Hy.Francis,frmr. The Mowbrays'

which is given to the school fund, is distributed in fuel snd
clothing. Martin’s charity of £2 6s. and Swan’s, of /31 4s.
yearly, are also distributed. Here was once a Benedictine
nunnery, founded in 11g0 by Aubrey de Vere, first Earl of
Oxford, or his father-in-law, Sir Willlam de Cantelape kat.
and dedicated to St Mary Magdalene; the prioress had a
grant from King Henry III, of z weekly market and an
annual fair, abolished in 1873 : the remains of the Priory,
now the property and residence of James Welch esq. have
walls 3 feet thick: several stone coffins have been dug up
on the site, Here are three manors, belonging respectively
to Sir Robert George Wyndham Herbert G.C.B., D.C.L.,
1.1, J.P. and Clare and Frinity Cofleges; the lords of the
manors, with James Welch esq. of Tekleton Abbey Farm,
the Eecclesiastical Commissioners snd Col.  Charles
Liewellyn, of London, are the principai landowners. The
soil is light; subsoil, chalk and gravel. The chief crops are
wheat and barley. The area is 2,700 acres; rateable value,,
£4,557; the population in 18¢r was Go4. By an Order
which came into operation March 23, 1880, a detached part
of this parish was amalgamated with Hinxton.

Parish Clerk, Gecrge Scole,

Post Office—Mrs, Susan Scole, postmistress. Letters
arrive from Saffron Walden at 7.20 & ro.715 a.m. & are
dispatehed at 1r.§ a.m. & G.40 p.m. & from Greab
Chesterford 5.0. Essex, at 10.23 a.m, & are dispatched
&b zr a.m.; on sundays at 11 a.m. Postal orders are
issmed here, but not paid. The nearest money order
office is at Great Chesterford & telegraph office at
Hiexton, © mile distant .

Wall Letter Box, Great Chesterford station, cleared at
9.30 am. & 5,350 p.m, ; sundays, 125 a.m

Church Schaol, erected in 1872 & enlarged in 1884, & will
now hold 146 children; average attendance, 1¢o;
Witilam Jemes Carver, master

Great Chesterford Railway Station

Carrier to Cambridge.—Mrs, Mary Hunt, tues. & sat

Flack Mary Ann (Mrs.), Duke of Wel-
lington P.H. & baker

Bowen George William Howard J.P.[Browning Edwin Luther, grocer&draprlFiack Samuel, waggonette proprietor

Iekleton gprange
Brand William, Providence cotiage clerk)
Francis Miss
Godlivey Frederick James
Hayden Mrs

OB, WG L, LL.DG, DL LD
Shelford John, Vietoria .cottage

SO

Cemetery (Frederick James Godirey,

Clark Jobn, miller (wind)

Course Humphrey, shoe maker

Cumming John, Red Lion P.E

Herbert Sir Robert Geerge Wyndham :Curram John, beer retailer

Elger David, farm bailif to G. W. H.
Bowen esq. The Grange

Flannergan William, Greyhound P.H

iFuller Charles, liead gardener to Sir
Robt, G. V. Herbert G.C.B., D.C.L

Fuller Julia {Mrs.), dress maker

Godfrey & Son, agricultural implement
malsers,ivonmongers, builders & con-
tractors; estimaies given

camp, 10%
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HORSEHBATH is a village and parish, pleasantly
seated on the Cambridge oid voad, 4% miles east from the
Linton stabion of the Cambridge and Sudbury line of the
Great Eastern railway, 4 wesk from Haverhill and x4
wouth-enst {rom Cambridge, in $he Rastern division of
the county, hundred of Chilford, petty sessional division
and union of Linton, county court districk of Haverhill,
raral deanery of Camps, and archdeaconry and diocess of
Ely, "The church of All Saints is an ancient edifice of
flint, and vubble in the Gothic style of the rgth century,
consisting of chancel, nave, north and seuth parches and
an embaitled western tower conbaining 4 bells: in the
chaneel is a r4th cent. brass of a knight in fuil grmour,
but the inseription is lost: on the south side of the
chaneel are monuments with efligies 1o Sir Giles Aling-
ton knt. master of the Ordnance, temap. Henry VIII. ob.
1586, and his son Gyles, bobh clad in armeour; and on
the north side a meonument with effigies to Sir Giles
Alington, ob. 1613, his wife Dovothy, and their o
children, figures of whem surround the monument: there
iz also a tablet to one of the Bromleys, Barons Montiord
of Horseheatl:, a iitle which became extinct on the
death of Henry (Bromley), zrd baron, April 30, 1851; a
brass with mubilated effigy to Rebert, son of Sir Giles
Alingbon, ob. 1532, and Margaret {Ceningsbie) his wife,
and inseribed brasses to Joan Alyngton, sisber and heir of
John Argentein, ob. r42¢, and to Mary (Cheyne), wife of
John Alingten, cirea 147c: the church was restored and
reseated in 188¢-9%, ab a cost of L1000, and now affords
10 sibtings, The register dates from the year 1338.

Borrer Rev. Chas. Alex. B.A. Rectory ; Higgs Joln, Batsen Arms P.H
Howard William, farmer
Hymus William, farmer
Kettle Allen, hurdle maker; also} Parsons Thomas Wayman, farmer,
denler in spits & hurdles
Kiddy William,farmer,Carbonalls fim; Roope Chas, boot & shoe ma. & haker
Goodjohn Charles, farmer, Bose farm| Ling Harry, carpenter

Hill Gearge H. The Colbage

Solari Miss, Horseheath lodge
COMMETCIAL.,

Cole Edward, baker & carrier

Coviel Henry, farmer

CAMBRIDGESHIRE,
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The living is s Tectory, net yearly valus f3c00, with

residence and including 12 acves of globe, in the gift of

the Governors of the Charterhouse, London, and held
since 1883 by the Rev. Charles Alexander Borrer B.A. of

Christ Church, Oxford. Hers is a Primitive Methodish

chapel. The charibies connected with the parish church

amount to about £25 yearly, and are distributed in
money and bread. Horseheath Hall, n magnificent man-
sion, erected here in 1663 by William, Baron Alington,
was sold ahoubt a century later for the wvalue of the
maserials ; the park, which consisted of above 870 acres,
lias been disparked. Horseheath Ledge, a mansion of
white brick in the Elizabethan style, r mile east of the
village, is the property of Stanlake Batson esqg. who is
lord of the manor and principal landowner, bub for ths
time being, the estates are in the hands of Thomas

Tayler esq. and the house is now the residence of Miss

Solari., The soil is clay; subseil, chalk. The chief crops

are wheat, ocats and barley. The area is 1,22 acres;

rateskle value, [1,774; the populabion in rgor was 4o3.
Saxten, Charles Bowers,

Post & Postal Order Office.—Mrs. Jessie Page, sub-post-
misbress.  Letters arvive from Cambridge, via Linton
& delivered ab 7.50 a.m. ; dispatched ab 5.50 p.m. week
days only. The nearest money order & telegraph office
is ad Bartlow, 3 miles distant

Public Elementary School (mixed), erected in 1875, for
100 children; average attendance, So; Miss Girace M.
Heitman, mistress

Carrier o Cambridge —Edward Cole, sat

Page Jessie (Mrs.), grocer & draper
& sub-postmistress ’
Parsons Clristopher, farmer

Park & Chureh farms

Simkin Leonard, irenmonger & black-

Hanchett Edwin, Montford Arms P HI Ling Sarah {Mrs.), Red Lion P.H smith

ICKLETON is a village and parish on the Dorders of
Essex, and a mile north from the Great Chesterford
station of the London and Cambridge seetion of the
Great Tastern railway, whkich is in tbis parish, 1x
miles south from Cambridge, 7 sounth-west {rom Lin-
ton, and 5 norih from Saffton Walden and 44 by
roand from Londen, in the Eastern division of the
counby, hvndred of Whitblesford, union and pebby ses-
sional division of Linton, court court district of Saffron
Walden, rurat deanery of Camps, and archdeaconry and
diocese of Ely. The church of St Mary 3s a large
building of stene- in the Tarly Norman sbyle, some
portions being, however, of a later date: it consists
of chancel, nave, aisles, south bransept, somth porch
and o central tower with a lofty spire containing a
alock and & hells: the chancel was entirely rebudit by
the Ecclesiastical CJominissioners, in 1882-3, and retains
a piscing amcl gedilia, and in 1883 further restorations
ware effected by Bir Robert Herbert G.C.B. and
others, the total cost amounbing bo £1,4163 in the north
aisle is a memerial window to the Hon. Alpernon Eerbert,
d. rr June, 855, and the walls bear some ancient frescoes,
much obscured by time: on the jambs of the clervestory
windows are varions figures, and the tower ceiling is nlso
painbed : the nave arcades are supposed to be Saxon: a part
of the Tood loft and a sereen of Perpendicnlar date remain,
the ander park of the rood loft being vichly traceried: in
1886 a marble memorinl was erceled to St, Leger Algernon
Herbert CLM.G. war correspandent, who was liillad o Abu
Klea in the Soudan, January 17, 1885 : the church affords
300 sibtings. The register dates from dae year 1558. The
living i3 o vicarage, nek yearly value £286, with residence
and including 17 acres of glebe, in the gift of the Lord
Chancellor, and held since 1864 by the Rev. John Amps
M.A. of Ersmanuel College, Cambridge. Here is 2 Con-
gregational chapel, erected in 1842, which has zoo sit-
tings, and a Primitive Methodist chapel, builk in 1852
A Cemetery of one acre was formed in 1883 ab a cosb of
4soo, with o chapel, and is under the control of the
Parish Council, The charity lands and cobtages produce
£140 yearly, which sum, excepbing a small partien which
is given to the school fund, is digtvibuted in fuel and
clothing. Martin's charvity of £z Gs. and Swan's, of FAFLR

Amps Jev. John M.A. Vicarage

Beales Mrs. Rose villa

Bowen Greorge William Howard DL,
J.P. Ickleton grange

Brand William. Providence cottage

Francis Miss, Norman hall

Hayden Mrs. Brookhampton heuse

Caldrecs

&.C.B.,, D.CL,,

Simmons William, Honey dene
Smith Mrs. Brookhampton cottage
COMMERCIAT,
Larly closing day, Wed. 4 pan.
Beales Hy.Francis,irmr.The Mowbrays

yearly, are also distributed in coal. ¥lere was once a

Benedictine nunnery, founded in 1zgo by Aubrey de Vere, -

frst Envl of Oxford, or his father-in-law, Sir William de
Cantelupe knt. and dedicated o St. Mary Magdalens;
the prioress had a grant from King Henry IIL of a
weeldy market and an annwval fair, abolished in 1873:
the remains of the Priory, now the property of Mr. James
Weleh, have walls 3 feet thick: several stone coffins
kave been dug up cn the site. Caldrees is the residence
of Sir Robert Genrge Wyndham Herbert .C.B., D.C.L.,
LL.D., D.%., J.P. and Ickleton Girange the residence of
George Willlam H. Bowen esq. D.Iv., J.P. Hers are
three manors, belenging respectively to Sir R. G. W.
Herbert and Clare and Trinity Colleges; the lords of the
manors, with Mr. James Welch, the Ecclesiastical Com-
missioners and the trustees of Col. Charles Liewellyn,
are the prineipal landowners. The seil is light; subsoil,
chall and gravel. The chief crops are wheat and barley.
The avea is 2,695 acres of lond and 5 of water; ratenbla
valne, £3,509; the population in 1901 was 598, By an
Order which came inte operation March 23, 1885, a
detached part eof this parish +was amalgamated with
Hinxton,

Parish Qlerk, Georga Soole.

Post & Postal Order Office.—Mrs. Susan Seole, Poste
mistress. The postal address for this place should be

Great Chesterford S.0. Essex. Leiters arrive from -

Saffron, Walden at 6.30 a.m. & from Great Chesterford
5.0. Essex at 10.20 a.m.; sunday, 6.0 am. & are
dispatched ab 11 am. & 7.20 p.m.: on sundays ab
7.20 p.ot.  The nearest money order & telegraph offics
is at Hinxton, 1 mile distant

Wall Letter Box, Great Chesterford station, cleared at
9-30 a.m. & 7.15 p.m.; sundays, 7.15 p.m

Public Elementary School, erected in 1872 & enlarged
In 1884, for 146 children; average attendance, fig;
‘William James Carver, master .

Police Constable, William Huekle

Great Chesterford Railway Station.—George Wilkiam
Newell, station master

Carrier to Cambridge.—Mrs. Emily Oakley, tues. & sab

Herbarb Sir Robert George Wyndham Brown William, DLeer retailer
LLD., D.L., J.P.|Browning Edwin Iuther, grocerfdrapr

Carder William, beer refailer

Carver William Jmmes, schooimaster
Cemetery (Fredk. Jas,Godirey, clert)
Clavke Johr, miller (water)

;Course Humphrey, shoe maker

DIRECTORY. ]

Cumming Joln G. Red Lion
shopheeper

Downing Thomas james, hous
Brick house

Flack Mary Ann {Mrs.), Duke
lington P.H, & baker

Tlack Samucl, wagonette prop

Flanagan William, Greyhounc

Fuller Charles, head gardenem
Robk, G, V. EHerbert G.C.B

Fuller Julia (Mrs.), dress mal

Godirey & Sor, sgricultural im
malers, builders & contrac

IMPINGEON is a small p
Qambridge, and immediately
wn the St. Ives and Cambri
Tastern railway, in tha Weste
Jhundred of Northstow, union
. sional division and ccunty co
rural deanery of North Sto
diocese of Bly. The elwrch ¢
187g, is a small building of s
Perpendicular styles, consistir
porch and a low embabiled

3 belis: the wooden south por
dure of fthe 156h century: !
carved work, and the door

remains : in the church are
of alabaster figures: during t
ing of St. Christopher was di:
~where i5 is sbill preserved, m
on the woodwork of the rool
tower is a very fine brass wit)
{ob. z323), his wife and chil
seription in Latin to Thomas
ob, 166g: there are =zpo sib
irom the year r36z. The livin
neb yearly value from 7o ac
2ift of and held since 188z hy
of the University of Cambrid
Newnham, Cambridge, but L:
Viear’s buildings, Impington.
properéy of W. A. Macfarlan
on lease for nine years, rent
Tambridge, for use as a moc
in connection with the latel:
agriculture. In this vitlage
cock, who, on her return fr
1790, was enveloped in a drifi
Impington Park Estate, un:
wearly eight days and nights
“and Hved until the Jaly follos
ing the event has heen erect
spob where she was found. T
Jheld under the see of Lly by
‘Chauavent, Colville and Burgoy

Chivers Stephen, jun

Finch Gerard Brown M.A.
clase (letters through Camb

Fowke Misses, The Firs

Hall Rev.Dennis M. A.Vicars b

Macfarlane-Grieve William Alc
M.A, B.C.L.Oxon., I.I.,
Impingten park; & Conserv
New University clubs, Londc

COMMERCIAL,

Biggs Jabez, Black Horse PLH
Burrell J. & Co. nurserymen
through Girton) :

ISLEHAM is an extensive
station on the Cambridge and
Great Eastern railway, 6 miles :
soabh-east from Ely and 16}
Bastern division of the county,
and petty sessjonal divisien of

district of Soham, rural dear
deaconry of Sudbury and dier
of 8b. Aadrew i3 a spacious

Decorated style, consisting of ¢

-aisles, transepbs, south porch :

fower with squat spire consair
the east window is partly filled »

by George Fletcher Robins esq.
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HORSEHEATH is a village and parish. pleasantly
seated on the Cambridge old road. 43 miles east from the
Linton station of the Cambridge and Sudbury line of the
Great BEastern railway, 4 west from Haverhill and 12
south-east from Cambridee, in the Eastern divisi i
the county, hundred of Chilford. petty sessional d
and union of Linton, county court distriet of Haverhill.
rural deanery of Camps, and archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely. The church of All Saints is an ancient edifice of
flint and rubble in the Gothic style of the r3th century.
consisting of chancel, nave, north and south porches and
an embattled western tower containing 4 bells:
chancel is a 14th century brass of a knight in full armour.
but the inscription is lost: on the south side of the
chancel are monuments with effigies to Sir Giles Aling-
ton knt. master of the Ordnance, temp. Henry VIII. ob.
1586, and his son Gyles, both clad in armour; and on
the north side a monument with effizies to Sir Giles
Alington, ob. 1613, his wife Dorethy, and their 70
children, ficures of whom surround the monument : thers

value £z7o, with residence and including 17 acres of
glebe, in the gift of the Governors of the Charterhouse,
London, and held since 1910 by the Rev. Edward
Joseph Green M.A. of Queen’s College, Oxford. Here
is a Primitive Methodist chapel. The charities con-
nected with the parish church amount to about £23
yearly, and are distributed in money and bread. Horse-
heath Hall, a magnificent mansion, erected here in 1665
by William, Baron Alington, was sold about a century
later for the value of the materials: the park, which
consisted of above 870 acres, has been disparked. Horse-
heath Lodge, a mansion of white brick in the Eliza-
bethan style, 1 mile east of the village, is the property
of Stanlake Batson esq. who is lord of the manor and
principal landowner, but for the time being, the estates

is also a tablet to one of the Bromleys, Barons Montfort
of Horseheath. a title which became extinct on the
death of Henry (Bromley), 3rd haron, April 30, 1851; a
brass with mutilated effigy to Robert, son of Sir Giles
Alington, ob. 13532, and Margaret (Coningsbie) his wife,

-and inscribed brasses to Joan Alyngton, sister and heir of

John Argentein, ob. 1429, and to Mary (Cheyne), wife of

. Jobn Alington, circa 1470: the church was restored and

reseated in 1880-g1, at a cost of Lr1,000: in 1911 Eix of
the nave windows were completely restored at & cost

cof £166: a stone with the following inscription has

in the .

are in the hands of Thomas Kayler esq. and the honse

“Green Rev,
(rector), Rectory

Lovett Mrs. The Cottage
Horseheath Iodge tailor

COMMERCIAL,

Cole James, carrier & baker

Edward Joseph M.A_|Cornwell Jobez, farmer, Rose farm

. Covill John, farmer
Cowley Joseph Jas. Batson Arms P.H
. Phillips Major Thomas Brocklehurst,| Eettle Allen, farmer, hurdle maker & |

Ling Harry, builder
Ashfield Fredk. Hy. grocr. Post office | McDonald Donald,
Major T. B. Phillips

been placed in the churchyard wall :—

“ George V. R.I our Xing, in mellow autumn tide
Here viewed a bloodless fray;
- May duty, love and peace abide
To bless him day by day.
Army Manceuvres, Sep. 18, rg12.”

The church affords 1go sittings. The register dates
from the year 1558. The living is a rectory, net yearly

is now the residence of Major Thomas Brocklehursr

Phillips. The soil is clay; subscil, chall. The chief

crops are wheat, oats and barler. The area is 1,022

acres; rateable value, /1,796 the population in g1z

was 41I.

Sexton, John Stinton,

Post Office.—Frederick Henry Ashfield. sub-postmaster.
Letters arrive from Cambridge, via Linton, at 7.13
am. & 1.40 p.m.; dispatched at r1.55 a.m. & 6.13
p.m.; sundays, arrive at 7.15 a.m.; dispatched a:
9.35 a.m. Bartlow, 3 miles distant, is the nearest
money order & telegraph office

Public Elementary School (mixed), erected in 1875, for
foo children; Miss Grace M. Heitman, mistress

Qarrier to Cambridge.—James Cole, sat

Morrell John, Montford Arms P.H
Parsons Christphr. (exors. of),farmrs
Parsons Thomas Wayman, farmer.
Park & Church farms

Roope Chas. boot & shoe ma. & baler
Simkin Thos. Eaden & A.blacksmiths
Stinton George, cycle dealer

{Stinton John, Red Lion P.H

to

gamelieeper

Freeas
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Ranson Gaorge A. Boot P.H
Bichman Isunk, draper
Rule Arthur 8. cyele vepairer {Symonds Allen P.

Samuel James Arthur,assistant over—"i‘uiliday Peter, builder
seer & clerk to Parish Council fUnwin Charles W.
I

Smith William, boot repaiver

EORNINGSEA (or Horningsey) is a parish and
village on the east bank of ths river Cam, 2 miles south
from Waterbeach station on the Cambridge and Ely
branck of the Great Rastern railway and 43 miles north-
north-east from Cambridge, in the hundred of Flendish,
Bottisham petty sessional division, union of Chesterton,
Cambridye county court distriet, rural deanery of Quy
and arckdeaconry and diocese of Ely. Across the Cam,
and joining this parisk te that of Waterbeach, is a
bridge, built by a company formed for the purpose
about 187z, and providing a means of communication
with the Waterbeach railway station. The church of
St. Peter is a building of stone in the Transition Nor-
man and later styles, consisting of chancel, nave, aisles,
south porch gnd a western tower containing 5 belle:
the chancel dates from about 1ze0: the north greade o
the nave is Decorated, and the Seuth Transition Nor-
man; sore of the windows are of the iate Decorated
period, and have beautiful tracery: ihe east end of the
south aisle, anciently a chantry, retzins a large niche:
o brass tablet was erected in the church on Nov, T1th,
1919, a8 a war memorial: it bears the names of the
men of this parisk whe fell in the Great War, 1grg-
1918 the south porch has grotesgue senipbures &t the
eaves: the church was thoroughly restared in 1863, ab &
cost of over [fr1,0co, the chancel at the expense of St,
Jobu’s College, and the nave by subscriptions from
parishidiers and friends: in 18go the tower and other
portions of the fabric were repaired, ab a cost of L4oo:

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.
Bailey Fredk. Thomass, Clay Hithe
Bailey Stonley, Fve hali
Conison Capt.Karl Haydon, TheLodee
Cripps Rev. Richavd Seymonr M.A,
(viear), The Vicarage
Lewin Edward J. 8t John’s farm |

HORSEHEATH is a village and parish, pleasantly
seated on the Cambridge old road, 4% miles east from the
Linton station of the Cambridge and Sudbury lire of the
Great Eastern railway, 4 west from Haverhill and 14
south-eass from Cembridge, in the hundred of Chilford,
petty sessional division and union of Linton, ceunty
courg district of Haverhill, rural deanery of Camps,
and archdesconry and diveese of Ely. The chureh o
All Saints is an ancienb edifice of flink and rubble in
the Gothie style of the 13th century, consisting of
chancel, nave, north and south porches and an em-
battled western tower containing 4 bells: in the chance]
is a 14th century brass of & kmight in full armour,
bub the inscriptien is lost: on the south side of the
chancel are monuments with effigies to Sir Giles Aling-
ton knt. master of the Ordnanca, temp, Henry VIII. ob.
1585, and his son Gyles, botk clad in armotr; and on
the narth side a monument +with effizies to Sir Giles
Alington, ob. 1613, his wife Dorothy, and their 10
children, fizures of whom surround the monunient; theve
is also a tablet tc one of the Bremleys, Barens Montfort
of Hersebeath, a title which became extinet on the
death of Hanry {Bromlev), 3rd baron, April 50, 2851 a
brass with mutilated effiev to Robert. san of Sir Giles
Alington, ob. 1552, and Margaret (Ceningsbie) his wife,
and inscribed hrasses to Joau Alyneton, sister and heir of
John Argentein, ob. 1429, and to Mary (Cheyne), wife of
John Alingtom, eirca 1470: the church was restored and
rosented in 18%80-g1, at a eost of £1,000: in 1911 six of
the nave windows were completely restored at a cost

|Gibsen William

Jones Rev. Basil Evan M.A. Rectory  Kibble George, Batson Arms P.H
iLing Harry, builder

Ashfield Fredk. Hy. grocr. Post offics’ National Farmers' eal . :
i shire branch} (James Smith, sec.),|Shore Williams John, insuranes agent

COMMERCIAL,

Cole James, butcher

Covill John, farmer

Flack John, farmer, Rose farm
Howard Frank, farmer
Kettle Allen, farmer

ICKLETON is a village and parish on the borders of
Essex, and a mile north from the Great Chesterford
station of the London and Cambridge section of the
Great Eastern railway, which is in this patish, 11
miles south from Cambridge, 7 sonlh-west from Lin-
ton, and 5 north from Saffron Walden and 44 by
read frowe London, in the hundred of Whittlesford, Lin-
ton union and pebty sessional division, Saffren Walden

CAMBRIDGESHIRE.

Public Benefit Meat Co. buichers ]Stead Clarence, farmer .
Stead Elizh. (Mrs.), market gardenr
IStead John, murket gardener

| COMBIERCIAL.
iBailey Tdk, Thes. {armer, Clay Hithe | Marfleat Josiah, market gardener
Bailey Staniey, farmer, Eye Hall frm Sargent Ernest, carpenter, assistant
Bugg John, boot ma. & parish clerk
Crouch Alfred, farmer

Charles, Crown &|Saunders Walter, farmer
Punch Bowl P.H

ICKLETON, 167

;Vggg Henry Robert, Barley Mow
nn; good accommedation for
travellers; parties cateved for;
billiards; ferms moderate

Williams William, Red Lion PH

Youngman John Chivers, fruit growr

cattle dealer

bustder

| there are =250 siftings. The vegister dates from the
| Year 1628. The living is a vicarage, net yearly valus
from patrens fzro, with residence, in the pift of S,
Johws College, Gambridge, and held since 1918 by
| the Rev. Richard Seymour Cripps M.A. of that collepe,
The parish enjoys one of the fens in Bottisham jointly
with the inbabitants of that parish, as well as anather
fen in Quy and Horningsen. The poor’s land preduces
46 yearly. Messrs. Ginn and Matthews are lords of
the manor, and St. John's College, Frederick T. Bailey
and ‘Stanley Bailey esqrs. are the principal landowners,
The soil is clayey; subsoil, gzult. The chief crops are
wheat, barley and oats, The ares is 1,635 acres of land
and 1z of water; rateable value, £1,536; the population
n 1911 Was 361.

CLAYHITHE is a hamliet in this parizh, bounded on
the east by the river Cam. A 4ol bridge, erected by
ihe Clayhithe Bridge Co. crosses the river Cam ai
Clayhithe and connects the parishes of Horningsea and.
Waterbeach,

Parish Clerk, John Bupgg.

ters thromgh Cambridge. Waterbeach, 3 miles dis-
tant, is the nearest money order & telegraph office
Wall Letter Box, at Clay Hithe
Public Elementary School, erected in 1841, enlarged in
871 & a new class-room was huilt in 1882, for ize
children; Mrs, Henrietta Baker, mistross

Lewin Edwd. S. frmr. St. John’s frm

overseer for Horningsea & clerk to
Parish Uouncil

heen piaced in the churebyard wall :—
“George ¥. R.I. our King, in mellow aubumn tide .

Here viewed a blaodless fray;

May duty, love and peace abide

To bless him day by day.
Army Manceuvres, Sep. 18, 1912.%

The chureh affords 190 sittings. The register dates
from the year 1558. The living is a rectory, net yearly
value £413, with residence and ineluding 17 acres of
glebe, in the gift of the Governors of the Charterhouse,
London, and held since 1920 by the Rev, Basil Evan
Jones M.A. of University College, Oxford. Here is a
Primitive Methodist chapel. The charities connected
with the parish amount Yo abous £23 yearly, and are
distributed in mensy znd bread. ~Horseheabh Hall, a
magnificent mansion, erected here in 1665 by William,
Baron Alingion, was sold about a century Iater for the
value of the materials: the park, which congisted of
above 870 acres, has been disparked. Stanlake Batson,

esq. is lord of the manor and principal landowner.,
The soil is clay; subsoil, chalk. The chief Crops are
wheat, vats and barley. The area is 1,922 acres; rate-
able value, £1,897: the population in I9I1 Was§ 411.
Sexton, Juhn Stinton. )
Post Office.—Frederick Henry Ashfield, sub-postmaster,
Letters through Cambridge, vis Linton. Bartlow, 3
miles, is the nearest money order & telegraph -office
Public Elementary School (miixed), erected in 1875, for

. County offices, Montford house
:Parsons Christpbr. (exors. of},farmrs| Stinten George, cycle dealer
fParsens Thomas Waymsn, farmer,|Stinton John, Red Lion P.H
' Park & Church farms !

too children; Miss Grace M. Heitman, mistrass
Roope Charles, hoot & shoe maker
Schofield Thomas, herse trainer,
Urion{Cambridge-| Horseheath lodge

Simkin Thomas Eadeu, blacksmith

county court distriet, Camps rural deanery, and Eiy
archdeaconry and diocese. The chureh of Sb. Mary
Maodalene s a large building of stone in the Barly
Norman style, some portions being, however, of a later
date: it consists of chancel, nave, nisles, somth tran-
sept, sonth porck and a central tower with a lofty
spire, containing a clock and 6 bells: in the nerik aisle
is a memorial window to the Hon. 4lgernon Herbert,

GaMB. &}

Post Office.—3rs, Amy Turner, sub-postmistress, Let-.

of [166: a stone with Ehe following inscription has,

R R Ty

[T
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HOBRSEHEATH is a village and parish, pleagantly
geated on the Cambridge old Toad, 44 miles east from
Linton station on the Cambridge and Sudbury line of
the London and North Eastern railway, 4 west from
Haverhill and 14 south-east from Cambridge, in the
hupndred of Chilford, petty sessional division and unien
of Linton, comnty court district of Haverhill, rural
desnery of Camps and archdeaconry and discese of
Ely. The church of All Saints is an ancient edifice of
fiint and rubble in the Gothic style of the xsth cen-
tury, consisting of chancel, nave, north and south
porches and an embattled western fower containing
4 bells: in the chancel is @ 14th century brass of a
Lnight in full armour, but the inscription is lost: on
the south side of the chancel are monuments with
effigies to Sir Giles Alington kat. master of the Ord-
nance, temp. Henry VIIL ob. 1586, and his son Gyles,
both clad in armour; and on the north side a monu-
mené with efigies to Siv Giles Alington, ob. 1613, his
wife Dorethy, and their 1o childrem, figures of whom
surround the monumens: there is also a tablet fo one
of the Bromleys, Barons Montfory of Horseheath, & title
which becsme extinct on the death of Henry (Bromley),
s7d baron, April ge, 1853; a brass with mutilated
efigy to Robert, son of Sir Giles Alington, ob. 1552,
snd Margaret (Coningsbie) his wife, end inscribed
brasses to Joan Alyngton, sister and heir of John
Argentein, ob. 1425, and to Mary (Cheyne), wife of
John Alington, civea 1470: the church was restored and

CAMBRIDGESHIRE.

reseated in 1880-g1, at a cost of fr,000: in 1017 six of

Cropper Rev.Frederick William M.A.
(rector), Rectory
Ling Charles Robert, The Cotiage
COMMERCIAL,
Marked thues ° farin 150 acres o1 over.
Ashfield Fredk. Hy. grocer
Chapman Gee. beer retir

undertaker

ICKLETON is a village and parish on the borders of
Essex, and & mile north from Great Chesterford sta-
tion on the London and Cambridge seciion of the
London snd North Eastern railway, which is in this
parish, 11 miles south from Cambridge, 7 south-west
from ZLinton, 5 north from Saffron Walden and 44
by road from London, in the hundred of Whittlesford,
Lintor union and petty sessional division, Safiron
Walden countv court district, Camps rural deanery
and Ely archdeaconty and diocese. The church of St.
Mary Magdalene is a large building of stone in the
Early Norman style, some portions being, however, of 2
later date: it consists of chancel, nave, aisles, south
transeps, south porch and a central tower with a lefty
spire, containing a clock and 6 bells, which were Te-
cast and rehung in 1928: in the mnoréh aisle is a
memorial window to the Hor. Algernon Herbert, d.
11 June, 1835, and there js another, erected in :gob,
to Sir Robert George Wyndham Herbert G.C.B., D.C.L.,
LL.D. d. 6 May, 1go5: the walls bear some ancient
frescoes, much obscured by time: on the jambs of the
clerestory windows are various figures, and the tower
ceiling is also painted: the nave arcades are snpposed
to be Saxon: a part of the rood loft and a screen of
Perpendicular date remain, the under pars of the rood
loft being richly traceried: in 18856 a marble memorial
was erected to Sir Leger Algernon Herbert C.M.G. war
gorrespondent, who was killed ab Abun Klea in the
Spudan, January 17, 1883: the chancel was entirely
rebuilt by the Ececlesiastical Commissioners in 1882-3,
and rektaing a piscina and sedila, and in 1883 further
restorations were effected by Sir Robert Herbert G.C.B.
and others, the total cesf amounting to [r,416: in
1008-g the church wes again restored, when new wia-
dows were put in, the roof of the nave renewed and a
wreather vane erecied on the steeple: during the restora-
tion = goed deal of Nerman and earlier work was dis-
covered: the church affords zoo sittings. The register
dates from the vear 1358, The living is a vicarage,
net yearly value £350, with glebe and residence, in
the gzift of the Lord Chancellor, and held since 1914
by the Rev. Philip Henry Cooke B.A. of London
Vniversity, and A.K.C. There is a Congregational

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.
Residents at end of book.)
Beales Morton, Icknield '
Beddoes Mrs. The Caldrees

J.P. Ickleton grange

Cole James, butcher
Eancock Fegkes, farmer, College frin|
oHoward Frank, farmr,Cardinals frin§ Roope Charles, boot & shoe maker
iFettle Ethel {Mrs.}, farmer
Ling Harry, builder, cantractor &, Simkin Thos, Eadon, blacksmith

feize
[KELLY’S

the nzve windows were completely restored aft o OST
of £166: there is & stone in the churchyard wall with
the following inscription:~—
« George V. B.I. our King, in mellow autumn tide
Here viewed a bloodless fray;
May duty, love and peace sbide
To bless him day by day.
Army Manceuvres, Sep. 8, 1912
The church affords 1go sitiings. The register dales
from the year 1338 The living is a rectory, neb yearly
value £46o, with Tesidence and including 17 acres of
glebe, In the gift of the Governers of the Chozterhouse,
Tondon, and held since xgzy by the Rev. Frederick
William Cropper M.A. of Trinity College, Cambridge.
There is a Primitive Methodist chepel here. The
charities connecied with the parish amount to about
Lz5 vearly and are distributed in money and bread.
Horseheath Hall, a magnificent mansion, erected here
in 1663 by William, Baron Alington, was sold abous 2
century later for the value of the materials: the park,
which ~consisted of above 87o acres, has been dis-
parked. T. Wayman Parsons esq. is lord of the manov
and principal landowner. The soil is elay; subsoil,
¢halk, ‘The chief crops are wheat, oals and barley.
The area is 1,922 acres; the population in 1ge1 was
360,
Sexton, John Stinton.
Post & Tel. Call Office. TLetters through Cambridge.
Barilow is the nearest M. O. & T. office

1°Parsons Thomas Wayman, farmer,
Park farm

i Bhore William John, insurance agent

| Smith James, poultry farmer

oParsons Christphr. (exors. of),ixmrs; Stinton George, cycle dealer

\Stinton John, Red Lion imn

chapel, erected in 1842, which has zoo sitbings, and a
Primitive Methodist chapel, built in 1852. In 1gzo an
pbelisk of grey granite was erected on the village
green, opposite she church, as a memorial to the men
of this parish who fell in the Greab War, 1914-18. A
cemetery of one acre was formed in 1883 at a cost of
£500, with 2 chapel, and is under the conirol of the
Parish Council. The charity lands and coitages pro-
duce fig40 yearly, which sum, excepting a small por-
tion which is given to the school fund, is distributed
in fuel and clothing, Martin’s charity of f2 Gs. and
Swan’s, of £1 4s. yearly, are also distribuied in coal.
There was olce a Benedictine nunnery here, founded
in 1190 by Aubrey de Vere, first Earl of Oxford, or his
inther-in-law, 8it William de Cantelupe knt. and
dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene; the prioress had a
grant from King Henry IiI, of a weekly market and
an annual fair, abolished in 1875: the remains of the
Abbey, now the propersy of Mr. James Welch, have
walls 5 feet thick: several stone coffins have been dug
up on the site. The Culdrees is $he residence of Mrs.
Beddoes, and Ickleton Grange of George Willinmn H.
Bowen esq. D.L,, J.P. There are three manors, belong-
ing respectively to the trustees of Sir R. G. W.
Herbert (d. 1903) and Clare and Trinity Colleges; the
lords of the manors, with Mr. James Welch, the
trustees of the late Henmry Francis Beales esg, J.P. and
G. W. H. Bowen esq. D.L., J.P. are the principal land-
owners. The soil is light; subsoil, chulk and gravel.
The chief erops are wheat and barley. The area is
2,695 acres of land and 3 of water; the population in
1gat was £43. By an Order which came into operation
March =5, 1886, a detached parbt of this parish wus
amalgamated with Hinxton.

Porisk Clerk, George Soole.
Post & Tel. Qell Office. Letters through Great Chester-

ford, Essex. Hinxton is the nearest M. O. & T. office

Police Station
Railway Station.—Great Chesterforg (L. & N. E)
The Ortora Motor Co. Ltd. rua omnibuses fo & from

‘Brand Miss. Stone house

(For T X’s see general list of Private ,Brand William, Providence cobtage

|Cooke Rev. Philip Henry B.A,AK.C.
(vicar)., The Vicarapge

Godfrey William C. Wayside

Bowen George William Howard D.L., |Joseph Miss, Brookhampton heuse

Cambridge daily

Moore James York O0.B.E. Ivy coit
Routl Maj. Arthur L. Norman hall
Tetley Mrs. Ickleton lodge

| Treacher Arthur Edward, Druid cott
Welch James, The Abbey

;Welch Miss, Howeys

i

Marke

“Benit
Bonhz
Bowtl
Brett
Ceme*
Chiltc
°Cust
bra:
Fuller

IMP.
Camb
on th
and D
stovw,
count:
North
churel
buildi
styles,
low e
weode
Isth ]
and t
the cl
figure
Christ
is stil
woodv
a ver:
1523,

tion i
1669
the9 ¥
net y
the A
Rev.

Camb
hridgw
Paric

Ltd,

on he
envelc
ton F
eight

lived

the ex
where
nnder
vent,

the pc

(For

Board
Bryan
Chapn
Chive
Chive;
Craft

Ede ®
Fyta
Lamb
Martiz
Moore
Munex

ISLE
statio
Londo
irom
from
and ]
courd
Fordh
churcl
in th
storiet
embat
a clog
staine
of thi
Carr,
1w No
line T




180 BISTON.

CAMBRIDGESHIRE.

HORSEHEATH is a village and parish, pleasantly.

seated on the Cambridge old road, 4% miles east from
Linton station on the Cambridge and Sudbury line of
the London and North Eastern railway, 4 west from
Haverhill and 14 south-sast from Cambridge, in the
hundred of Chilford, petty sessional division and rural
district of Linton, county court distriet of Haverhill,
rural deanery of Camps and archdeaconry and diocese of

nance, temp. Henry VIIL. ob. 1386, and his son Gyles,
both clad in armonr; and on the north side a monu-
ment with effigies to Sir Giles Alington, ob. 1613, his
wife Dorothy, and their 1o children, figures of whom
surround the monument: there is also a tablet to one
of the Bromleys, Barons Montfort of Horseheath, o title
which became extinet on the death of Henry (Bromley),
3rd baron, April 30, 1851; a brass with mutilated
effigy to Robert, son of Sir Giles Alington, ob. 1552,
and Margaret (Coningsbie) his wife, and inscribed
brasses to Joan Alyngton, sister and heir of John
Argentein, ob. 1429, and to Mary (Cheyne), wife of
John Alington, circa r470: the church was restored and
reseated in 1880-g1, at a cost of £r,000: in 1911 six of
the nave windows were completely restored at a cost
of £166: there is a stone in the churchyard wall with
the following inscription:—
* George V. BR.I. our King, in mellow autumn tide
Here viewed a bloodless fray;
May duty, love and peace abide
To bless him day by day.

Army Manceuvres, Sep. 18, 1912.”

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Ely. The church of All Saints is an ancient edifice of
fiint and rubble in the Gothic style of the 15th cen-
tury, consisting of chancel,~ nave, north and south
porches and an embattled western tower containing
4 bells: in the chancel is a x4th century brass of a
knight in full armour, but the inscription is lost: on
the south side of the chancel are monuments with
cffigies to Sir Giles Alington knt. master of the Ord-

The church affords 190 sittings. The register dates
from the year 1558. The living is a rectory, net yearly
value fy413, with residence and including 17 seres of
glebe, in the gift of the Governors of the Charterhouse,
London and held since rg3z by the Rev. Charles Henry
Everard Frobisher Cropper. There is a Methodist
chapel here. The charities connected with the parish
amount to about £rs yearly and are distributed in
money and bread.  Horseheath Hall, a magnificent
mansion, erected here in 1665 by William, Baron Aling-
ton, was sold about a century later for the value of
the materials: the park, which consisted of above 870
acres, has been disparked. T. Wayman Parsons esq.
is lord of the manor and principal landowner. The
soil is clay; subsoil, chalk. The chief crops are wheat,
oats and barley. The area is 1,92z acres; the popula-
tion in 1921 was 369.

Post & Tel. Cell Office. Letters through Cambridge.
Bartlow is the nearest M. 0. & T. office

Conveyance.—Motor omuibuses run between Cambridge
& Haverhill daily except thurs

[ 7T

Cropper Rev. Charles Henry Everard
Frobisher (rector), Reetory

Heitman Miss

Ling Charles Robert, The Cottage
COMMERCIAL.

Marked thus © farm 150 acres or over.

Ashfield Fredk. Hy. grocer. T N 1
Benwell Geo. Red Lion inn

Brown Alex. M.B.,Ch.B.Glas. hysen.
& surgn. (Wilson & Brown) (sur-
gery

Cole Jas. butcher

Herbert Emma Amelia (Mrs.), beer
retlr

°Howard Frank, farmr.Cardinals frm

Kettle Bros. farmers, Church farm

Kiddy Hector Jn. farmr. College frm

Ling Harry, bldr

°Parsons Christphr. (exors. of),frmrs

®Parsons Thomas Wayman, farmer,
Pari farm. T N Haverhill 112

Roope Charles, boot & shoe maker

Shore William John, insurance agent

Simkin Thos. Eaden, blacksmith

Smith James, poultry farmer

Stinton George, cycle dealer

Wilson & Brown, physens. & surgus.
(surgery)

Wilson Hugh Mundle M.B., Ch.B.
Glas. physen. & surgn. (firm.
Wilson & Brown) (surgery)




[EELLY'S

Jng the names of the men o
who fell in the Great War
.cross roads here. A Baptis
2, ab & eest of [£2,500, to seat
‘also a Methodist chapel, built:
ring esy. and William Imard
“of the manors of Histon S
¢ Htheldreds, end Mr. Sidney
nd Sons Limited and the Cam
yare the principal Izndowner
i and Sons Limited, who own
f fruit gardens in the parish
¢y in the village, and emplo
the works are lighted wi

il with 20,000 gallons of water
7 able to produce over 1oo tons:
A produces excellent crops of
ltet garden produco and great
m which Cambridge, London
ive large supplies. The are
“ibon in 1931 was 1,700,

e {Rural Areas) Review Order
frish was trapsferred to Girton
saps Act, in 1882, and Local
ler 18,036 (Mareh 23, 1886)
wwere added to Impington.
5. D. Office. Letters throwgh

% B)

Geo. insur. agh. 47 Saffron rd.:
. Herbt. L. froit growes,
‘ier, Fmpinglon Ia
7 Qctavius, fruit grower,
on Ia
ual Benzole Co. Lid. petroleum:;
3. Station ¥d. T N 11 :
Oshorn, plumber, Church sé
LLion PO (Leenard Vool
sshall), High sb
& Crown P.EL(W1kr. Churcher)
Grraen
“rth Bert,
PN g
r Clkas. motor cab propr. Sta

Tmp.

cattle dlr. Narrow

5 o1

Fredle. bee keeper, Page’s clos
Rowland, farmer, Qld farm
Wltr, frnibt grower, Cottenham

4 Altd. T. fiorist, Cotbenham rd
& Alsop, butchers, Narrow la
a]3cmaﬁt'. Meas Co. butchers
host

son Norman A, shopkpr. Higho

ey Sidney  Smith,
wy farm. TN

¥ Tom, nurseryman, Bell hill
4 Wm. boot repr. High st

fariner,

DIRECTORY. ]

The ehurch of 3. Peter is a building of stone in the
Transition Nerman and later styles, consisking of
chancel, nave, aisles, south porch and a western fower
containing 5 bells: the chancel dates from about 1z20:
the nortk arcade of the nave is Decorated, and the
south Transition Mormuan; some of the windows are of
the late Decorated period, and have beantiful fracery:
the east end of the south aisle, anciently a chaunry,
retnins o large niche: a brass tablet was erecled in
1919, inscribed with the names of the men of this
parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-19:8: the
south porch has grotesque sculptures at the eaves: the
thurch was thorenghly restored in 1863 at a cost of
over f1,000, the chancel at the expense of St Joln's
Cellege, and the mave hy subscriptions from parish-
ioners and friends: in 1890 the tower and other
pertions of the fabric were repaired at a cost of £4o0:
farther extensive rapairs were carried out during
23-5: there are 250 sittings, The register dates
frem the year 1628. ‘The living is a vicarage, net
vearly value from pabrons £381, with zesidence, in

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

(For TN’s see general list of Private
Residents at end of hook.)

Bailey Mrs. Clay Hithe

Bailey Stanley, Tiye hall

Brereton Jsph. Lloyd, The Priory
Lewin Edward J. 86 John's farm
8mith Gordon Bertram, Old Viear-

CBailey Stanley,
farm.

Gibson)

age
Webb Albert J. The Lodge

HORSEHEATH is a village and parish, pleassntly
seabed on the Cambridge old road, 4% miles east from
Linton station on the Cambridge and Sudbury line of
the London and North Eastern railway, £ west from
Haverhill and 14 south-east from Cambridge, in the
hundred of Chilford, petty sessional division of Linton,
reral distriet of South Cambridgeshive, county court
listrict of Cambridge, rural deanery of Camps and
archdeaconry and diccese of Bly. The church of All
Saints is an ancient edifice of fling and rabble in the
Gothic style of the rsth century, consisting of chancel,
nave, north and seuih porches and an embatiled west-
e tower econtaining 4 bells: in the chancel is a rgth
century Dbrass of a Jnight in fall armour, but the
inseription is lost: on the south side of the chancel
arg monuments with effipies to Sir Giles Alington kat.
master of the ordnance, temp. Henry VIIL. ob. 1586,
snd his son Gyles, both clad in armounr; and on the
north side & monumen? with effigies to Sir Giles Aling-
ton ob. 2613, his wife Dorvothy, and $heir 1o children,
figures of whom surround the monument: there is
also & tablet to one of the Bromleys, Barons Montfonb
of Horseheath, a tfitle which Decame extinet on the
death of Henvy (Bromley), srd bavon, April o, 1851;
8 brass with mutilated offizy to Robert, son of Six
Giles Alingten, ob. 1332, and Margaret (Coningsbie) his

KELYS précesey @ (937
CAMBRIDGESHIRE.

COMMERCIAL,
Mazked thns © [arm 150 acres or oveT.
Ashman Simeon In. osier grower

T N Waterbeach 68
Bugg Jn. boot repr. & parish clerk
Crown & Punch Bowl P.H. (Wm. C.

Day DBrothers, stallholders
Fishpoole Ernest Arth. Rd. shopkpe
Froment Chas. poultry farmer
Gibson Fredk., Hy. blacksmith

- 5. Trodk : wife, and Inseribed brasses to Joan Alyngton, sister and
--:]i(gn 1%]1:15. Frodi. boob repr heir of John Avgentein, ob. 142q, and to Mary (Cheyne),

wife of John Alington, circa 1470: the church was

»Ald, Jn.farmer,Cottenham r +
F fLintmer restored and reseated in 188o-gr, at a cost of Lr,o00:

“1ell W, Peirson, fruit grower,

189

the gilt of St. John’s Coeilege, Cambridge, and held
since 1937 by the Rev,

. The parish enjoys ene of the fens in
Botéisham jointly with the irhubitants of that pavish,
as well as anosher fen in Quy and Herningsea. The
paor’s land prodwees L6 yearly. Messrs. Ginn and
Matthews are lords of the manor, and St. John’s
College, Stanley Bailey esq. and Lt.-Cel. John C. W.
Franeis ave the prineipal landowners. The soil is
clayey; subsoil, gault. ~ The chief crops ave -wheat,
barley and oats. The area is 1,635 acres of iand and
12 of water; the population in rg3r was 3ze.

ICKLETON.

CLAYHITHE is a hamlet in this parish, bounded on
the east by the river Cam. A toll bridge, erccted by
the Claybithe DBridge Co. crosses the river Cam ab
Clayhithe and connects the parishes of Hovrningsea and
Waterbeach,

Post & Tel. Call Office. Lettérs through Cambridge.
Waterbeach nearest M. O. & . office

SGingell Hugh & Neville, farmers,
Manor farm. Waterbeach gr

Hart George, wheelwright

Hoppitt Herbt.clerk to ParishCouncil

“Lewin Edwd. J. farmer, St, John's
farm. Waterbeach 67

Pamplin Katurah (Mrs.), shopkeeper

Plough & Fleece . (Wm. Geo.
Green)

Sargent Brothers, dairymen

9Webb Alberh J. dairy [armer, The
Lodge & Clayhithe. Waterbeach 6g

farmer, Eye Hall

in rg1r six of the mave windows were completely
restored abt a cosb of Lr66: there is a stone in the
churchyard wall with the following inscription : —
* George V. R.E our King, in mellow autumn tide
Here viewed 2 bloodiess fray;
May duty, Iove and peace abide
To bless him day by day.
Army Mauceuvres, Sep. 18, 1g12.”

The charch affords rgo sittings. The register dates
from the vear 1338. The living is a rectory, netvearly
value £4:5, with residence and including ¥y acres of
glebe, in the gift of the Governors of the Charterhouse,
Londen and held since 1937 by the Rev.

. There is a Methodist
chapel here. The chavities connected with the parish
wmennt to about L1535 yearly and are distributed in
money and bread,  Hovseheath Hall, a magnificent
mansion, erccted hers in 1665 by William, Baren Aling-
ton, was seold about a century later for the value of
the materials: the park, which consisted of above 870
acres, has been disparked. Mz, . Wayman Parsons
is lord of the manor and principal landewner. The
soil is clay; subsoil, challe. The clief crops ave wheat,
oats and barley. The area is 1,922 acres; the popula-
tion in 1631 Was 354
Post & Tel. Call Office. Lebters through Cambridge.

Bartlow is the nearest M. O. & T\ office

Conveyance.—Omnibuses between Cambridge & Haver-
hill daily

e
y Bert, insur. agh. r7 Saffron

1 . L. Lid. bldrs. Station rd
:6 N

;Harry, draper, High st

5 Jn. Baml.  nurseryman
srelh st

‘Roy, hajrdrssr. High st
‘ninster Bank Litd, (sub-branch).
m toes. & fri. ro.go nam. tod
“m.); head office, 4z Lothbury,
donECe

ms Nathnl, chemist,Station rd
wvard  Geo. market  gardener,
idn

ys Wm. Harry, fishmngr. Sta

. Sehwind Charles Henry, Park house

Ashfield Fredk. Hy. grocer, & post

ICKLETON is a village and parish on the borders of
. Essex, and a mile north from Great Chesterford sta-

PRIVATE RESIDENTS. Batson Arms (Mrs. Emma Amelia
Herbert)

Baxter Frank, poultry farmer, Car-
dinals farm

Brown Alex, M.B.,Ch.B.Glas.physen.
& surgn. (Wilson & Brown) {sur-
gery)

Cole Jfas. bufcher

Kebtle Bros. farmers, Chureh fzrm

Kiddy Heetor Jn. farmr. Coliege frm

Ling Harry, bldr

Moutford House Café {W. Burgess,
propr)

(For T N’s see general list of Private
Residents at end of book.}

Gregtrex Mrs., Manor house

Ling Charles Robert, The Cottage
Parsons Thomas Wayman, Forse-
heath lodge

COMMERCIAL.
Merked thas © farm 150 acres or over.

office. Linton 25

°Parsous Thomas Wayman, farmer,
Pagk & Mill farms. Linton 270

Red Lion Ink (Geo. Benwell)

Roope Charles, boot & shoe maker

SSchwind Chas. Hy. farmer, Manor
farm. Haverhill r3=

Share Willinm Joln, insurance agent

Simkin Thos. Baden, blacksmitk

Stinton George, cyele dealer

Wilson & Brown, physcns. & snrgns.
(sargery)

Wilson Hughk Mundle M.B., Ch.B.
Glas. physen. & sargn. (fiem,
Wilson & Brown) (sargery)

however, of a later date: it consists of chancel, aanve,

rd
- Wm. Ey. cyele repr, gz Saft
“1rd

tior on the Lordon and Cambridge section of the
London and North Eastern railway, which is in this
parish, 11 miles south from Cambridge, 7 south-west
from Linton, 5 north from Sefron Walden and 44
by road from London, in the hundred of Whittlesford,
- Linton petiy sessional division, Sowlh Cambridgeshire
rural district, Saffron Walden county courvt district,
Camps yural deanery and Ely archdeaconry and diocese.
* The church of 8t Mary Magdalene is u large building
of stone in the Barly Norman style, some porkions being,

‘ubridge county courb district;
zd avehdeaeonry and diocesa of
«d joining this parish to that ef-
4, built by a company formed

3pz, and providing a means of
e Waterbeach railway station,

aisles, south transept, south porel and a central tower
with a lofty spire {restored in 1935), containing a elock
and 8 beils, which were recast and rehung in 1028:
the east window and twn others are memorials: the
wolls bear some avcient frescees, much obscured by
time: on the lambs of the clevestory windows are
various fignres, and the tower ceiling is also painted:
the nave arcades are stpposed to he Saxon: a parb of
the rood loft and a screen of Perpendiculay dale
remain, the under part of the rood loft being richly
traceried: in 1886 a marble memorial was erected to



Wikipedia entry 2007

Horseheath is a hamlet in Cambridgeshire, England, situated a few miles south-east
of Cambridge, between Linton and Haverhill, on the A1307 road.

Horseheath was known to the Romans, and it had for a while a fine house in a great
park, but both are now gone. Now it has a few old houses, to keep company with its
600 year old church containing Norman fragments. The fine nave, a blaze of light
from great transomed windows, is 15th century, and its [ofty height is crowned by a
noble roof with a great span, with massive moulded beams and carved bosses. The
oak chancel screen also dates from the 15th century and still has traces of painting in
its panels. There is a 16th century sundial. It has a 500 year old font, and treasured
brasses and monuments of lords and ladies of its greater days. They were the
Audleys and the Alingtons. A fragment of old glass in the church has the shield of the
Audleys, one of whom distinguished himself at the Battle of Poitiers, in 1356. A brass
portrait in the church shows William Audley, who was alive at the time, standing with
his feet on a lion, magnificent in armour and with a very long sword. Near him is the
brass of Sir Robert Alington, Knt., laid to rest in May 1552. (Sir Robert had been
married to Margaret, daughter of Sir William Coningsby, Knt., King's Justice).

The Alingtons held the manor here, and one of them was slain on Bosworth Field.
His son, Giles, was Master of Ordnance to King Henry Vill, and lies in splendour with
his son, one above the other, both in armour, heads on helmets and feet on hounds.
The son ouflived the father by 64 years. There is another Giles Alington of
Shakespeare's day on an impressive alabaster monument with his wife and their six
children, he in slashed breeches and armour, she in a ruff and hooped skirt. The
Alingtons thrived under the Stuarts and had the privilege of handing to the King his
first drink at coronations.

"The Alingtons lived at Horseheath Hall. The house was rebuilt in 1663-6 by architect
Sir Roger Pratt; (Vitruvius Britannicus is wrong in assigning the house to Webb). It
was a Classical eleven-bay house with a three-bay pediment, quoins, hipped roof,
balustrade and belvedere on the roof. It was further enlarged in 1688, but pulled
down in 1777. The splendid wrought-iron gates went to St John's College and Trinity
College, Cambridge, and the rectory at Cheveley."

References

o Mee, Athur, The King's England, New revised edition, London, 1965, p.150.

o Nikolaus Pevsner, extract from The Buildings of England - Cambridgeshire,
London, 1st edition 1954, 2nd edition 1970, p.410-411.




A vision of Britain between 1801 and
B Rl I A l N 2001. Including maps, statistical
trends and historical descriptions.

Place: Horseheath Cambridgeshire

Your location: Home > Horseheath

A vision of

Horseheath

For the best overall sense
of how the area
containing Horseheath
has changed, please see
our redistricted
information for the
modern district of South

Cambridgeshire.

Travellers'

- Tales

There are two references to Horseheath in our
collection of historical travel writing, describing Britain between the twelfth and nineteenth
centuries.

In 1870-72, John Marius Wilson's Imperial Gazetteer of England and Wales described Horseheath like
this:

"HORSEHEATH, a village and a parish in Linton district, Cambridge. The village stands near
the boundaries with Essex and Suffolk, and near the Bartlow station of the Cambridge and
Haverhill railway, 3 2 miles E by N of Linton.-The parish includes also the hamlet of
Horseheath-Green. Post town, Linton, under Cambridge. Acres, 1, 849. Real property, £3,
068. Pop., 497. Houses, 112. The manor, with Horseheath Lodge, belongs to S. R. Batson,
Esq. The living is a rectory in the diocese of Ely. Value, £400.* Patron, the Charterhouse,
London. The church is ancient; consists of nave, aisle, and chancel, with N and S porches,
and a tower; and contains a very ancient brass, supposed to be that of Sir Philip de
Argentine. Charities, £16."

This is the only descriptive gazetter entry we have found, but you may be able to find further
references to Horseheath by doing a full-text search here.

Most of the information in the "Vision of Britain" system is held for administrative units, such as
parishes and various kinds of district. These units were based on the place you have selected.

Unit: Type:
Horseheath EP Ecclesiastical Parish
Horseheath AP/CP Parish-level Unit

If you are looking for statistical information, the most varied information tends to be for units whose
type is "Poor Law Union/Reg. Dist.", in the 19th century, or "Local Government District”, in the 20th
century. Parish-Level Units usually have data on basic population trends, and cover areas more tightly
focused on the place. Watch out for units whose title includes "Rural", as these often cover the
countryside around a "place” which is a town, but not the town itself.

http://www.visionofbritain.org.uk/place/place_page.jsp?p_i1d=3807 15/10/2007



Horseheath Cambridgeshire through time | Agriculture and Land Use Statistics | 1801 ... Page 1 of 1

5 A vision of Britain between 1801 and
B RI I A l N 2001. Including maps, statistical
trends and historical descriptions.

Horseheath AP/CP: 1801 crop acreages,
simplified

Your location: Home > The Isles > UK > England > Cambridgeshire > Horseheath > Agriculture and Land Use >
N_CROP1801_SIMP

The 1801 crop returns list differing crops for different parishes. This simplified
version of the data removes most of these complications by (a) always combining
together barley and oats, peas and beans, and turnips and rape, each pair
sometimes being listed separately; and (b) including a simple "other' category,
unlike the original data which list an additional one or two named crops for
particular parishes. Note that a great many parishes were missing from the data,
and some additional parish names could not be identified, matched more than one
parish within the named county, or lacked information on the county they were in.
Nottinghamshire is completely missing. County totals include data for parishes that
could not be identified. The national total for England includes parishes with
missing county information. The national total for England is also used as the total
for England and Wales, to permit the web site to present comparisons with national
totals, even though the returns contain no data on Wales.
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Horseheath AP/CP: Total Houses
Your location: Home > The Isles > UK > England > Cambridgeshire > Horseheath > Housing > N_HOUSE_TOT

Total number of houses.
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: A vision of Britain between 1801 and
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Horseheath AP/CP: Males aged 20 and over, in
occupational categories
Your location: Home > The Isles > UK > England > Cambridgeshire > Horseheath > Industry > N_OCC_PAR1831

The only information provided by the first three censuses was a three-way
categorisation of families. In 1831, this more detailed categorisation was
published, although it was limited to males aged 20 and over (although numbers of
male servants under 20, and of female servants, were also listed). These are the
most detailed parish-level occupational data ever published by the census.
Information on the precise occupations of workers in retail trade and handicrafts
was also published at county-level.
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Horseheath AP/CP: Total Population

Your location: Home > The Isles > UK > England > Cambridgeshire > Horseheath > Population > N_TPop

Up to 1961 almost all population totals, from parishes up to national totals, are
computed from the census parish tables; details are in 'Source Info View'. We very
carefully checked these tables both for internal consistency and against district-
level totals in age structure tables. This work both eliminated almost all
computerisation errors and showed that the original tables had been carefully
checked before publication. However, adding the data to our system meant
matching up unit names in the census tabie with names in our core gazetteer — the
information on our 'Relationships’ pages. Because of variations in naming, not all of
the most detailed data are currently linked in. This usually results in a simple gap in
the population time series, but very occasionally the original tables gave separate
population figures for the parts of a parish. If some but not all of the names match
there will be an erroneously low population total. We are working to eliminate
these.
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